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PART I
Forward Looking Statements

This Form 10-K contains “forward-looking” statements including statements regarding our expectations of our future
operations. For this purpose, any statements contained in this Form 10-K that are not statements of historical fact may be deemed to
be forward-looking statements. Without limiting the foregoing, words such as “may,” “will,” “expect,” “believe,” “anticipate,”
“estimate,” or “continue” or comparable terminology are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These statements by their
nature involve substantial risks and uncertainties, and actual results may differ materially depending on a variety of factors, many of
which are not within our control.

These risks and uncertainties include international, national, and local general economic and market conditions; our ability
to sustain, manage, or forecast growth, our ability to successfully make and integrate acquisitions, new product development and
introduction, existing government regulations and changes in, or the failure to comply with, government regulations, adverse
publicity, competition, the loss of significant customers or suppliers, fluctuations and difficulty in forecasting operating results,
change in business strategy or development plans, business disruptions, the ability to attract and retain qualified personnel, the ability
to protect technology, and the risk of foreign currency exchange rate. Although the forward-looking statements in this report reflect
the good faith judgment of our management, such statements can only be based on facts and factors currently known by them. In
light of these risks and uncertainties, you are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. Except as
required by law, we undertake no obligation to announce publicly revisions we make to these forward-looking statements to reflect
the effect of events or circumstances that may arise after the date of this report. All written and oral forward-looking statements
made subsequent to the date of this report and attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their
entirety by this section.

ITEM 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS.

History

We were incorporated in the state of Nevada on January 26, 2009, to serve as a holding company for our former smart home
business, which was conducted through our former subsidiary, Home Touch Limited, a Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
of China corporation, or HTL. On January 26, 2009, we acquired HTL through a share exchange transaction in which we exchanged
40,000,000 shares of our Common Stock for 10,000 shares of HTL common stock. HTL was originally organized under the name
Lexing Group Limited in July 2004 and was renamed Home Touch Limited in 2005.

On July 15, 2010, we effectuated a 1-for-20 reverse stock split, or the Reverse Split, of all issued and outstanding shares of
the Company's Common Stock in connection with our plans to attract additional financing and potential business opportunities. As
a result of the Reverse Split, our issued and outstanding shares decreased from 40,000,000 to 2,000,000.

On September 27, 2010, we filed a report on Form 8-K disclosing the sale to certain accredited investors on September 21,
2010, of an aggregate of 1,500,000 shares of our Common Stock at a per share price of $0.10, or $150,000 in the aggregate, in
accordance with the terms and conditions of certain subscription agreements made with such investors. The Company received net
proceeds of approximately $145,000 from the sale of the shares which were used for general corporate purposes. The shares were
sold pursuant to the exemption provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Regulation D promulgated
thereunder. Weng Kung Wong, who was appointed our Chief Executive Officer and director on November 15, 2010, purchased
375,000 shares of our Common Stock in this transaction.

Change in Control, Disposition of Smart Home Business, Acquisition of UHT and Name Change

On November 15, 2010, we consummated the sale to certain accredited investors of an aggregate of 80,000,000 shares of
our Common Stock at a per share price of $0.01, or $800,000 in the aggregate, in accordance with the terms and conditions of certain
subscription agreements made with such investors. The Company received net proceeds of approximately $795,000 from the sale of
the shares which were used for general corporate purposes. The shares were sold pursuant to the exemption provided by Section 4(2)
of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended and Regulation D promulgated thereunder. Weng Kung Wong, our Chief Executive Officer
and director, purchased an additional 12,750,000 shares of our Common Stock in this transaction.

A change of control occurred in connection with the sale of such shares. David Ng and Stella Wai Yau resigned from their
positions as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and as Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer and
Secretary of the Company effective November 15, 2010. The following individuals were appointed to serve as executive officers
and directors of the Company:

Name Office
Weng Kung Wong Chief Executive Officer, Director



Liong Tat Teh Chief Financial Officer, Director
Sek Fong Wong Secretary, Director

On December 6, 2010, we consummated a share exchange, or the Share Exchange, pursuant to which Wooi Khang Pua and
Kok Wai Chai, or the UHT Shareholders, transferred to us all of the issued and outstanding shares of Union Hub Technology Sdn.
Bhd., or UHT, a company organized under the laws of Malaysia and engaged in the design, development and operation of
technologies to enable a community of users to engage in social networking, research and e-commerce on a mobile platform, in
exchange for the issuance of 16,500,000 shares of our common stock, par value $0.001 per share, or the Common Stock. As a result
of our acquisition of UHT, we became involved in the m-commerce business. The Share Exchange was made pursuant to the terms
of a Share Exchange Agreement, or the Exchange Agreement, by and among, and the Company, the UHT Shareholders and UHT.
As result of the Share Exchange, UHT became our wholly owned subsidiary. We relied on the exemption from registration pursuant
to Section 4(2) of, and Regulation D and/or Regulation S promulgated under, the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities
Act, in issuing the UHT Shares. Mr. Chai is a director of UHT and beneficially owns 4.85% of our issued and outstanding common
stock.

Concurrently with the Share Exchange, we sold to Up Pride Investments Limited, a British Virgin Islands limited liability
company owned by David Gunawan Ng, and Magicsuccess Investments Limited, a British Virgin Islands limited liability company
owned by Stella Wai Yau, all of the issued and outstanding securities of HTL for cash consideration of $20,000. In connection with
the sale, Mr. Ng and Ms. Yau, our former founders and executive officers, resigned from their positions on our board of directors.
Our smart home business was conducted through HTL, and as result of the sale, we ceased our smart home business operations. The
sale of HTL securities was made pursuant to the terms of a Common Stock Purchased Agreement, or the Common Stock Purchase
Agreement, by and among the Company, HTL, Up Pride Investments Limited and Magicsuccess Investments Limited. We relied on
the exemption from registration pursuant to Section 4(2) of, and Regulation D and/or Regulation S promulgated under, the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, in selling the HTL securities.

The foregoing descriptions of the Exchange Agreement and Common Stock Purchase Agreement are qualified in their
entirety by reference to such agreements which are filed as Exhibits 2.2 and 10.1 to this Annual Report, respectively, and are
incorporated herein by reference.

On January 25, 2011, we changed our name to Prime Global Capital Group Incorporated and increased our authorized
capital to 1 billion shares of common stock and 100 million shares of preferred stock.

On February 8, 2011, we consummated the sale to 19 of our of existing accredited stockholders of an aggregate of
400,000,000 shares of its common stock, par value $0.001, at a per share price of $0.01, or $4,000,000 in the aggregate, in accordance
with the terms and conditions of certain subscription agreements made with such stockholders. Weng Kung Wong, our Chief
Executive Officer and director, participated in the transaction and purchased 32,300,000 shares of our common stock on the same
terms and conditions as the other stockholders.

The per share closing prices of our common stock and the per share purchase prices paid by our investors on each placement
date are described below:

Subscription Purchase Price Closing Price
February 8, 2011 $0.01 $0.41
November 15, 2010 $0.01 $0.55
September 21, 2010 $0.10 $0.40

The discount on price provided to our investors at the time were attributable to a variety of factors including the significant
risks involved in investing in a Company in its early stages of business development, the low revenues and earnings generated by
the Company, concerns regarding the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern which was ultimately expressed in the
Company’s financial statements as of October 31, 2011, the size of the investment and the illiquidity of the Company’s securities on
the open market.

On January 20, 2014, the Company through PGCG Assets sold and issued to an unaffiliated third party 200,000 shares of
its Common Stock at a price of RM 100 per share, for aggregate consideration of RM 20,000,000, or approximately US$
6,084,760.72. PGCG Assets received net proceeds of approximately RM 20,000,000, or approximately US$ 6,084,760.72 from the
sale of its securities and used the net proceeds for general corporate purposes. As a result of the foregoing transactions, 90% of the
issued and outstanding securities of PGCG Assets is owned by UHT and 10% by such unaffiliated third party. The sale and issuance
was made pursuant to the terms of a subscription agreement containing terms and conditions that are normal and customary for a
transaction of this type.

On October 31, 2014, the Company through Virtual Setup Sdn. Bhd., its affiliate, sold and issued to Denvoursuisse Sdn.
Bhd. 200,000 shares of its Common Stock at a price of RM 10 per share, for aggregate consideration of RM 2,000,000, or



approximately US$ 611,731. Virtual Setup received net proceeds of approximately RM 2,000,000, from the sale of its securities and
used the net proceeds for general corporate purposes. As a result of the foregoing transactions, 95% of the issued and outstanding
securities of VSSB is owned by PGCG Plantation and 5% by such Denvoursuisse Sdn. Bhd., which also owns 10% of the issued and
outstanding securities of PGCG Assets. The sale and issuance was made pursuant to the terms of a subscription agreement containing
terms and conditions that are normal and customary for a transaction of this type.

Approval to Initiate Uplisting Process
On December 12, 2011, our board of directors approved, authorized and directed our officers to initiate the process for
listing shares of the Company’s common stock on one or more U.S. national securities exchanges including the NYSE Amex Equities

Exchange. We have elected to indefinitely delay uplisting efforts to focus on implementing our business plan.

Current Business Operations

Current Corporate Structure

A chart of our current corporate structure is set forth below:

PRIME GLOBAL CAPITAL
INCORPORATED
I |
UNION HUB PGCG PROPERTIES POWER GREEN
TECHNOLOGY SDN BHD INVESTMENT LIMITED INVESTMENTS LIMITED
|
| | |
PGEG ASSETS PGCG PLANTATIONS PGLG DEVELOPMENT MAX TREND
HOLDINGS SDI BHD* DN BHD SPN.BHD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

L1  PGCG CONSTRUCTIONS

SDN BHD
VIRTUAL SETUP

SDN BHD*

DUNEQRD,
CORPORATION 3DN BHD

] RELANA MAKSIMASDN
BHD

FIESTA SENADA SDN BHD

- HAVANA AVENUE
SN BHD

* Denvoursuisse Sdn. Bhd., an unaffiliated third party, owns 10% of PGCG Assets and 5% of VSSB.

During fiscal year 2016, we operated two business segments: (i) our oil palm and durian plantation business; and (ii) our
real estate business. Our oil palm and durian plantation business is operated through Virtual Setup Sdn. Bhd., or VSSB, and our real
estate business is primarily operated through PGCG Assets Holdings Sdn. Bhd., or PGCG Assets, and Dunford Corporation Sdn.
Bhd.

In December 2014, we discontinued our software business in Malaysia and concentrate our resource to develop the real
estate business. No revenue or expenses were incurred in the software business during the years ended October 31, 2016 and 2015.

During the last two fiscal years, each of our business segments accounted for the amount and percentage of net revenue set
forth below:

October 31, 2016 October 31, 2015

Net Revenue % of Net Net Revenue % of Net

Revenue Revenue
Plantation 108,516 6.6% 156,642 8.2%
Real Estate 1,538,211 93.4% 1,763,101 91.8%



The business of the Company is engaged entirely in Malaysia. The Chief Executive Officer and executive directors
regularly review the Company's business as one geographical segment.

As of October 31, 2016, the amount of net assets held by a PRC subsidiary was $0 (2015: $74,595), all of which is
restricted.

Additional information regarding the countries from which our revenues are derived and the location of our cash and net
assets are provided in Notes 3 and 14 to our financial statements.

Our initial business plan launched in July 2010 broadly contemplated the development, distribution and operation of mobile
and online social networking, ecommerce and search products and services. However, as a result of the challenges we experienced
in implementing our m-commerce business plan, we entered the oil palm plantation and real estate businesses in 2012 and in 2014
discontinued our software business. Since the commencement of our new business segments, we (through our subsidiaries):

e Acquired an oil palm plantation in Malaysia which is operated through VSSB;

e Acquired 21.8921 hectares (54.10 acres) of vacant development land located in Selangor, Malaysia, which is subject to a
99-year leasehold, expiring July 30, 2100;

e Acquired Dunford Corporation Sdn. Bhd., or Dunford, whose primary assets consist of two parcels of undeveloped land
located in Selangor, Malaysia aggregating approximately 31 acres;

e Acquired a 15 story commercial building located at Geran 10010, Lot 238 Section 43, Town and District of Kuala
Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia; and

e Acquired a 12 story commercial building located at Megan Avenue 1, No. 189, Jalan Tun Razak, 50400 Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia.

Description of Our Plantation Business

Qil Palm Cultivation

Oil palm is an edible vegetable oil obtained by crushing the fruit of the oil palm tree, commonly referred to as fresh fruit
bunches. Palm oil is one of seventeen major oils traded in the global edible oils and fats market and has broad commercial and
industrial uses. According to World Palm Qil, the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) estimates that the World Palm
Oil Production in 2016/2017 will be approximately 64.5 million metric tons. Palm oil production in 2015 was 58.84 million tons
with Malaysia contributing 20 million metric tons. The estimation of 64.5 million tons production for 2016/7 represents an increase
of 5.65 million tons or a 9.6% in palm oil production around the globe, with Malaysia contributing an increase of 2.3 million metric
tons. According to a study by Grand View Research, Inc., global palm oil market demand was 74.01 million tons in 2014 and is
expected to reach 128.2 million tons by 2022.

Crude palm oil (CPO) is extracted through a process of sterilizing and pressing of the oil palm tree’s fresh fruit bunches
(FFB). Each FFB can contain over a thousand individual fruits. During the extraction process, seeds are separated from the fruit, and
upon cracking the seed’s shell, the kernel inside is separated for further processing to yield palm kernel oil (PKO). Derivatives of
CPO and PKO are used throughout the world for many food and non-food applications including cooking oil, margarine, ice cream,
non dairy creamer, soaps, detergents, animal feed, cosmetics and industrial lubricants.

Oil palm is one of the few perennial crops that is harvested all year round. Oil palm trees require constant rain throughout
the year and are limited to tropical environments located in the ten-degree belt around the equator such as South East Asia, West
Africa and South America. The largest producers of palm oil are Malaysia and Indonesia, which account for approximately 85
percent of annual global palm oil production.

The commercial life span of an oil palm tree is estimated to be up to 25 years. Palm oil is recognized as being significantly
more productive due to its high oil yield per hectare compared to other edible oil sources, such as soybeans and rapeseed. Oil palm,
due to its high edible oil productivity per hectare, is one of the world’s most efficient crops for the production of edible oils, which
is an important component of the human food supply. Qil palm can yield up to ten to fifteen times more edible oil per hectare than
the leading alternatives such as soya, rapeseed, canola or corn.

We believe the palm oil industry is well positioned in the years ahead for the following reasons:

e Demand for CPO, in common with other vegetable oils, has remained relatively robust, even through the current global
economic turbulence. We believe that this is being driven by growing demand from the food industry which is anticipated
to increase in line with expectations of higher GDP growth from the three key consuming/buying markets: China, India
and the EU. We believe that demand for vegetable oils is accelerating, due largely to income growth in populous regions
and the influence of biodiesel programs.



e We believe that per capita vegetable oil consumption in developing Asian countries remains low relative to other more
developed nations. As per capita income increases in these developing nations, we expect that the demand for palm oil
will increase, as the population is able to consume more foods that use palm oil (especially packaged foods such as
chocolates, creamers and fast food).

o Environmental concerns and the increasing price of crude mineral oils have resulted in a worldwide trend to utilize
vegetable oils such as rapeseed oil, soybean oil and palm oil for the production of biofuels and electricity. We believe that
the growth in the production of biodiesel will be particularly pronounced in Asia. In addition, biofuel initiatives in
Europe, such as the edible oil requirement for food, are causing an increase in demand for vegetable oils, primarily
rapeseed, by biofuel producers. In turn, we anticipate that Europe’s demand for palm oil will increase in food processing,
as locally produced oil crops are diverted for biofuel usage.

Outsourcing of Management and Operation of Qil Palm Plantation

We cultivate FFBs on our 643 acre oil palm plantation and distribute them to third party oilseed processors located in
Malaysia that extract, refine and resell palm oil. The byproducts of the refinery process are sold to other manufacturers further
downstream to produce various derivative products.

Prior to September 21, 2015, we through our subsidiary VSSB directly managed and operated our oil palm plantation. Due
to challenges associated with labor shortages and labor management, our Board of Directors approved contracting out the
management and operation of our oil palm plantation to BJ Bentong Trading, or BJ, effective September 21, 2015, in accordance
with the terms and conditions of an Agreement for Rental of Qil Palm Land, or the Oil Palm Tenancy Agreement. On September 29,
2016, the Company and BJ entered into a letter of agreement pursuant to which the parties mutually agree to terminate the Tenancy
Agreement upon the following conditions:

1. BJ’s deposit of RM70,000 shall be forfeited by the Company;

2. All staff, laborers, machinery and tools shall be removed from the premises and the premises returned to the Company no
later than September 30, 2016; and

3. BJshall indemnify the Company for a period of six (6) months after the termination of the Tenancy Agreement against all
and any damages, loss, expenses or other cost on the property and or the oil palm trees regardless of whether such damage
arose as a result of the act, omission or negligence of BJ or its agents and representatives.

During the year ended October 31, 2016, the Company recognized other income of $16,983 from forfeiture of BJ’s deposit.

We are currently directly managing our oil palm and durian plantation. The Board expects to monitor its plantation
operations in the near future to determine whether the Company will continue with direct operations, enter into another contracting
arrangement or sell the oil palm plantation.

The foregoing description of the letter agreement is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Letter Agreement, which is
filed as Exhibit 10.2 to this Annual Report and incorporated herein by reference.

If our cultivation operations expand, we may consider building or acquiring one or more oil mills to extract and sell CPO
and PKO from FFB cultivated on our own plantation and on smaller local plantations.

Management believes that the value of its oil palm and durian plantation has increased since its acquisition , and while it
has not pursued any discussions or received any formal offers regarding the sale of its plantation, it may also consider selling sales
offers in the future it a sale would maximize return to its investors.

Oil Palm Pricing

CPO and PKO are commodities traded in a worldwide competitive market with high pricing volatility. Factors affecting
pricing of these commodities (which in turn affect the prices for FFBs) include:

Estimated output based on the acreage, weather conditions and pest infestation etc.;
Shifting cropping patterns in producing countries;

Leftover stocks from the previous years’ production after meeting the demand;
Consumption and export pattern;

Energy prices; and

Government policies and intervention.

We believe that prices of our vegetable oils are linked to prices in the fuel sector. As fuel prices increase, we would expect
the prices of our oil palm to also increase. Similarly, we would expect falling crude prices to exercise a downward pressure on oil
palm prices. We further believe that the current financial condition and the growing nexus between crude oil prices and vegetable



oil prices brought on by the increased reliance on oils for biofuels will exacerbate the pricing volatility and uncertainty already
inherent in our industry.

Because we do not exert significant pricing power over our products, we expect margin expansion to occur through more
cost effective manufacturing processes or by way of value addition, branding and retail packaging. We do not, however, have any
current plans to brand our products or seek retail customers.

Our Durian Orchard

We commenced planting premium durian, of the “Musang King” variety, in the first quarter of 2014. With over 200
varieties, durian is regarded by many people in Southeast Asia as the "king of fruits" with the “Musang King” variety being one of
the best. Durian fruit can grow as large as 30 centimetres (12 in) long and 15 centimetres (6 in) in diameter, and it typically weighs
one to three kilograms (2 to 7 Ib). Its shape ranges from oblong to round, the colour of its husk green to brown, and its flesh pale
yellow to red, depending on the species. Durian trees have one or two fruiting periods per year, although the timing may vary
depending on the species, cultivars, and localities. A typical durian tree can bear fruit after four or five years. The durian fruit can
hang from any branch and matures roughly three months after pollination. As of the date of this report, we have replanted 130 acres
of our oil palm with premium durian trees. In November 2016, we began planting an additional 150 acres of durian. We hope to
plant 35 trees per acre and anticipate an average production of 50 grade A fruits per tree for each of the two harvesting seasons per
year.

We have used the latest planting technology in 2016, which we hope will reduce the maturity time of the durian tree from 5
years to 3 years. All the durian trees planted on the 130 acres will begin to fruit by 2019 at the latest. Accordingly, we do not expect
revenue from our durian orchard until calendar year 2019. At this time, we do not expect our durian orchard to exceed 280 acres in
the near future.

Premium Durian Pricing

Prices of durians are relatively high as compared with other fruits. In Singapore, the strong demand for high quality cultivars
such as the D24(Sultan), and Musang King (Mao Shan Wang) has resulted in typical retail prices of between US$5 to US$10 per
kilogram of whole fruit. With an average weight of about 1.5 kilograms (3.3 Ib), a durian fruit would therefore cost about US$8 to
US$15. The edible portion of the fruit, known as the aril and usually referred to as the "flesh” or "pulp", only accounts for about 15—
30% of the mass of the entire fruit. There are no formal written statistics on premium durian of the Musang King species.

Description of Our Real Estate Business

Our real estate business operations consist of the acquisition, development, management, operation and sale of commercial
and residential real estate properties located in Malaysia, primarily in Kuala Lumpur and Selangor. We anticipate generating revenues
from sales of developed properties and from rental income from our commercial properties. Developed property sales can include
condominium units, individual villas and bungalows at our future Shah Alam 2 Eco Residential Development project located in
Selangor, Malaysia. We may also sell properties under development, undeveloped properties or commercial properties, if
opportunities arise that we believe will maximize overall asset values.

Real Estate Market Conditions in Malaysia

We believe that Malaysia’s property market has been subdued in 2016 and based on industry experts from Malaysia, the
same is expected in 2017. However, the experts believe that the recent development of the LRT/MRT train lines which enhances
connectivity to Greater Klang Valley including Seremban, Rawang and Klang will bode well for the residential and commercial
property markets. We believe that Malaysia has a young demographic, with 80% of Malaysians below the age of 50. We believe that
demand for housing will increase as more young adults enter the workforce and begin family formation.

Because our real estate holdings will be concentrated in Selangor and Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia, we expect that the financial
condition and results of operations of our real estate segment will be highly dependent upon market conditions for real estate activity
in those regions. We expect that our future operating cash flows and, ultimately, our ability to develop our properties and expand
our real estate business will be largely dependent on the level of our real estate sales and leasing activities. These activities in turn
will be significantly affected by future real estate market conditions in Selangor and Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia, including development
costs, interest rate levels, the availability of credit to finance real estate transactions, demand for residential and commercial real
estate, and regulatory factors including our use and development entitlements. These market conditions historically move in periodic
cycles, and can be volatile in specific regions.

Our Commercial Real Estate Holdings




We generate rental income from our 12 story and 15 story commercial properties and anticipate generating income from
the sale of developed properties. As of October 31 2016, 2 of the 12 stories of our 12 story building have been leased to tenants at
market rates. We expect to generate approximately $140,000 of gross rental income on an annualized basis from our 12 story building
based upon full occupancy of our 12 story building at prevailing market rates. The remaining two stories are occupied by us and
serve as our corporate headquarters.

In August 18, 2014, PGCG Assets entered into a rental agreement (the “Rental Agreement”) with Le Apple Boutique Hotel
(KLCC) Sdn. Bhd. formerly known as Esquire Bayview Sdn. Bhd. (“Le Apple”), pursuant to which Le Apple agreed to lease the
entirety of our 15 story commercial building located at No. 160, Jalan Ampang, 50450 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia to operate a boutique
hotel. The Rental Agreement is retroactively effective as of December 1, 2013, and supersedes the prior lease agreement between us
and Esquire Bayview Sdn. Bhd. (now Le Apple) dated December 18, 2013, with respect to the same premises.

The Rental Agreement operates on thirty sequential renewable one year terms, with the current term expiring November
30, 2017. Provided that there are no existing breaches by Le Apple, we will be required to renew the lease for additional one-year
terms up to twenty nine times, for a maximum aggregate term of thirty years. Our current monthly rental rate is RM400,000
(approximately $95,386) and is increased every three years by 5% to 10% or to the then prevailing market rate, whichever is lower.

In the event we elect to sell the premises, we are required to offer Le Apple a right of first refusal to purchase such premises
at a mutually agreed upon price in accordance with the terms of the Rental Agreement. If the premises are sold to a third party other
than Le Apple, the Rental Agreement shall be assumed by such purchaser.

The foregoing description of the Rental Agreement is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Rental Agreement, which
is filed as Exhibit 10.3 to this Annual Report and incorporated herein by reference.

If the business of our tenant is adversely affected, we will be required to seek replacement tenants. There can be no assurance
that the business of our tenant will continue for the term of the lease or that we will be able to find a replacement tenant if our tenant
is no longer able to meet its lease obligations. If we are unable to lease out the building, our operating results may be materially and
adversely affected. We expect demand for commercial property to remain steady and positive for 2017. As a result, we do not
anticipate significant challenges in leasing out our 12 story and 15 story commercial buildings.

Development Activities. We hold a 99-year leasehold interest to 21.8921 hectares (54.10 acres) of vacant development
land, or the Land, and two parcels of vacant land aggregating approximately 31 acres, or the Dunford Parcels, all located in Selangor,
Malaysia. We intend to develop the Land into the Shah Alam 2 Eco Residential Development project and hope to develop the
Dunford Parcels into the Bandar Sungai Long High Grade Villas Community project. For better cash flow planning, we have
strategized that the development of our Bandar Sungai Long High Grade Villas Community project will commence once we have
successfully sold Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the Shah Alam 2 Eco Residential Development project. If we are not able to successfully
develop, market and sell our Shah Alam 2 Eco Residential Development project, our ability to complete all or any portion of our
Bandar Sungai Long High Grade Villas Community Project may be adversely affected.

Shah Alam 2 Eco Residential Development

Shah Alam 2 is an existing third party development sprawled over 1,163 acres of prime land within Bandar Puncak Alam.
It is located in Selangor in the burgeoning Klang Valley area in which Malaysia’s capital is also situated. Upon completion, it is
anticipated to be an integrated and self-contained township approximately 10 times the size of Subang Jaya, one of Malaysia’s most
celebrated suburbs, with a population of approximately 500,000. We believe that Shah Alam 2 may rival even Shah Alam, the
Selangor state capital, in terms of size and dynamism.

Our project, the Shah Alam 2 Eco Residential Development, will be located within the Shah Alam 2 development.
Encompassing 54.1 acres, the project will feature superlink homes, semi-detached homes, bungalows, high-end condominiums and
commercial shop-offices with an environment-friendly theme emphasizing the importance of a sustainable lifestyle. All the
residential parcels will be gated and guarded for increased security.

On June 10, 2015, we received approval to develop our leasehold land located in Puncak Alam. Due to challenges in the
current Malaysian real property market, in November 2015, we submitted a request to convert some our planned semi-detached and
bungalow home parcels into cluster semi-detached homes to improve the marketability of the development. We received approval
of our revised development plan on March 4, 2016.

Proposed Joint Venture with Yong Tai Berhad
On July 1, 2016, PGCG Assets Holdings Sdn Bhd, a Malaysia corporation and our wholly owned subsidiary (“PGCG

Assets”), entered into a memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) with Yong Tai Berhad, a public listed corporation in the main
market of Bursa Malaysia Berhad (“YTB”) engaged in the business of commercial and residential property development, to jointly



develop the land located at Puncak Alam (the “Proposed JV”). Under the MOU, the parties agreed to use their best efforts to negotiate
exclusively with each other regarding the terms and conditions of the definitive agreement to jointly develop the Land.

Pursuant to the MOU, the parties agreed that PGCG Assets and YTB shall be entitled to 20% and 80%, respectively, of the
estimated Gross Development Value of the Proposed JV, or at such percentage of estimated Gross Development Value as may be
mutually agreed upon at a later date between the parties. The Gross Development Value of the Proposed JV is estimated to be
RM510,000,000 or approximately $122,000,000. This estimate may be revised accordingly during the negotiation of the terms of
the definitive agreement.

The participation of the parties in the Proposed JV is conditional upon the following conditions precedent being fulfilled
on or before the expiry of 4 months from the date of this MOU with an automatic extension of 2 months from the expiry therefrom
or such later date as agreed between the parties (“Termination Date™):

(i) finalization of the negotiations between the parties and the terms and conditions and execution and delivery of the
definitive agreement, in the form and substance that is satisfactory to the parties;

(if) completion of all viability studies, assessments and due diligences as required by YTB including but not limited
to financial, legal, tax, technical and business due diligences and due diligence on the Proposed JV, and the parties
being satisfied with the results of such viability studies, assessments and due diligences;

(iif) The parties shall use reasonable efforts to negotiate and enter into the definitive agreement which will reflect the
terms of this MOU and contain such other provisions as are usual and customary in transactions of this nature
including customary representations and warranties, customary conditions to closing, indemnifications and
covenants and the parties are satisfied on the warranties as agreed between the parties.

If the definitive agreement concerning the Proposed JV is not executed by the Termination Date (or such later date as agreed
between the parties) for whatever reason, then the parties are released from all further obligations and liabilities under the MOU.
The MOU is governed by the laws of Malaysia.

The foregoing description of the MOU is a summary only and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the MOU, which is
filed as Exhibit 10.4 to this Annual Report and incorporated herein by reference.

YTB is currently conducting its feasibility studies and business and market due diligence. We have suspended our plans for
obtaining further approvals pending YTB’s determination of whether it elects to proceed with the Proposed JV. In the event YT B
elects not to proceed with the Proposed JV, we will reassess market conditions to determine whether we will seek additional
development partners, proceed on other bases or suspend development efforts until market conditions improve. As of the approval
date of this report, no definitive agreement has been concluded.

If completed, we expect our Shah Alam 2 Eco Residential Development project to comprise of the following:

Floor(s)/
Units per floor / Planned Built-
Types of property Total Block(s) [Land size Total Unit(s) |up area (sq. ft.)
2-Storey Boulevard Shop offices 22ft x 75ft / 22ft x 78ft/ 86 2,500 to 2,900
20ft x 70ft
Stratified Affordable Shops 20ft x 35ft 18 700
High Rise Apartments 2 11 floor X 12 units
Type A D1 1,200
Type B D1 1,100
Type C 125 1,000
Type D 33 800
Affordable Apartments (Type B) 1 172 750
Affordable Apartments (Type C) 1 173 000
Landed Homes :-
2 Y% - Storey Superlink Homes - 22ft x 75ft 119 2,500
2 - Storey Link Homes - 20ft x 70ft 30 1,600
2 - Storey Cluster Semi-Detached Homes - 30ft x 60ft 136 1,800
2- Storey Cluster Semi-Detached Homes - 30ft x 55ft 16 1,650
2- Storey Semi-Detached Homes - 40ft x 65ft D4 1,900




| 2 - Storey Bungalow Homes | - |8oft — 90ft x 60ft b P,600

Bandar Sungai Long High Grade Villas Community

We do not intend to commence development of our Bandar Sungai Long High Grade Villas Community project until we
have successfully sold Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the Shah Alam 2 Eco Residential Development project. If we are able to successfully
develop the Bandar Sungai Long High Grade Villas Community project, we anticipate that the project will consist of a high-end
gated and guarded community encompassing approximately 31 acres of landscaped areas with the following types of properties:

Types of property Total Block(s) Floor(s)/ Total Unit(s) Planned Built-up area
Units per floor / (sq. ft.)
Land size
2 Y% - Storey Superlink 30ft x 80ft 77 3,500 sq.ft.
Homes
Condominiums 4 - 508 1,000 sq.ft.
1,100 sq.ft.
1,200 sq.ft.
1,300 sq.ft.
Low-Cost Apartments |1 - 234 700 sg.ft.
Low-Medium Cost 1 - 130 750 sg.ft.
Apartments 900 sg.ft.
Medium-Cost 1 - 226 1,000 sq.ft.
Apartments

Near-Term Requirements For Additional Capital And Business Strategy

We intend to focus on our near-term goal of developing the Land and the Dunford Parcels through prudent use of available
resources and our long-term goal of maximizing the value of our development projects. We believe that Malaysia is a desirable
market and we intend to continue exploring acquisitions in Kuala Lumpur and the Selangor region. We believe that our developments
will have inherent value given their unique nature and location and that this value should be sustainable in the future.

For the immediate future, we intend to continue financing future real estate acquisitions and development through sales of
our securities to existing shareholders and loans from financial institutions. We periodically conduct internal discussions to obtain
the necessary financing, however, there can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain sufficient funds on acceptable terms to
timely meet our obligations.

As of October 31, 2016, we had cash and cash equivalents of $685,876. We believe that we will need approximately RM5
to RM10 million in the aggregate to market, promote and complete construction of our Shah Alam 2 Eco Residential Development
Project. We hope to finance such costs through our joint venture partner and a combination of loans, funds from ongoing building
sales and operating capital.

Distribution

Customers of our oil palm plantation business principally consist of oil palm processors, refineries and oil palm product
manufacturers. Our products are distributed in bulk from our plantations directly to our customers’ facilities. We transport our
products through third party transportation systems.

Marketing, Sales and Support

Our sales and support staff focus on identifying land for the cultivation of our oil palm, durian and preparation for the
marketing activities of our real estate development projects.

We do not and have no immediate plans to engage in marketing activities with respect to our oil palm plantation business
as our FFBs are sold in bulk to extractors and processors.

Once we commence construction of our Shah Alam 2 Eco Residential Development or Bandar Sungai Long High Grade
Villas Community projects, we expect to initiate marketing activities directed toward prospective purchasers for the sale of our the
property units that we are developing.

Major Customers



We generated net revenues of $1,646,727 during the fiscal year ended October 31, 2016. Our real estate business accounted
for approximately 93% of our net revenue in Malaysia. We are not a party to any long-term agreements with our customers.

During the fiscal years ended October 31, 2016, and 2015, the following customer accounted for 10% or more of our total
net revenues:

Year ended October 31, 2016 October 31, 2016
Business Percentage Trade accounts
segment Revenues of revenues receivable
Le Apple Boutique Hotel (KLCC) Sdn.
Bhd. Real estate $ 1,501,818 91% $ 104,924
Year ended October 31, 2015 October 31, 2015
Business Percentage Trade accounts
segment Revenues of revenues receivable
Le Apple Boutique Hotel (KLCC) Sdn.
Bhd. Real estate $ 1,729,560 90% $ 102,421

All of our customers are located in Malaysia.
Key Vendors

All of our key vendors are located in Malaysia. We are not parties to long-term agreements with our major vendors. In light
of the discontinuation of our software and consumer goods business segments, we do not expect to engage the services of software

vendors in the future. We do not anticipate difficulties in locating alternative developers and other vendors as needed.

During the fiscal years ended October 31, 2016 and 2015, the following vendors accounted for 10% or more of our purchases

Business segment Year ended October 31, 2016
Percentage
Purchase of purchase
SJC Agro Trading Plantation $ 4,715 13%
Business segment Year ended October 31, 2015
Percentage
Purchase of purchase
Lim Joo Soon Enterprise Plantation $ 45,794 55%
Supri Yono Plantation 17,995 21%

Competition and Market Position
Oil Palm Plantation and Durian Orchard Business

Our oil palm plantation and durian orchard business is characterized by intense competition, pricing volatility and foreign
currency risks. Our competitors range from small-scale operators to fully integrated multinational enterprises with significant
financial, technical, sales, marketing and other resources. In addition to palm oil producers, our competitors for the oil palm
plantation business also include producers of alternative vegetable oils such as soybean, rapeseed, cottonseed, peanut, sunflower
seed and corn oils.

Market fundamentals that affect supply and demand of our products include land shortages, water constraints, climate
change, global warming, low operating margin, inadequate quality control and quality assurance mechanisms leading to adulteration,
food laws and poor implementation and low depth liquidity in futures markets. Non-fundamental factors include politics, inflation,
investor interest, government policies and liquidity.

Multinational corporations are able to take advantage of economies of scale that allow them to command high quality with
lower costs, access cheaper credit, minimize losses and decrease input costs. Multinational corporations also tend to have a greater
ability to absorb volatility in production and pricing and respond to uncertainty. We believe that the current financial crisis, global
volatility in commodity prices and the growing nexus between crude oil prices and vegetable oil prices brought on by the increased
reliance on oils for biofuels have only served to exacerbate the volatility and uncertainty already inherent in our industry.



We believe that our competitive position will depend on our ability to mitigate volatility and uncertainty in our industry.
We hope to achieve this by obtaining economies of scale, developing vendor relationships, obtaining and maintaining protection of
our intellectual property, recruiting and retaining qualified personnel and securing adequate capital resources. While we expect to
compete primarily on the basis of pricing and vendor relationships, we believe that the diversion of vegetable oil for use as biofuels
will offer us an opportunity to achieve and sustain an acceptable margin of return for the foreseeable future.

Real Estate

The real estate development business in Malaysia is highly competitive and fragmented. We compete against numerous
public and private developers of varying sizes, ranging from local to national in scope. As a result, we may be competing for
investment opportunities, financing, and potential buyers with entities that may possess greater financial, marketing, or other
resources than we have. Competition for potential buyers has been intensified by an increase in the number of available properties
resulting from the recent boom in the Malaysian real estate market. Our prospective customers generally have a variety of choices
of new and existing homes and home sites when considering a purchase. We attempt to differentiate our properties primarily on the
basis of community design, quality, uniqueness, amenities, location and developer reputation.

The real estate investment industry in Malaysia is highly fragmented among individuals, partnerships and public and private
entities, with no dominant single entity or person. Although we may compete against large sophisticated owners and operators,
owners and operators of any size can provide effective competition for prospective tenants. We compete for tenants primarily on the
basis of property location, rent charged, and the design and condition of improvements.

Intellectual Property

We intend to protect our investment in the research and development of our products and technologies. We intend to seek
the widest possible protection for significant product and process developments in our major markets through a combination of trade
secrets, trademarks, copyrights and patents, if applicable. We anticipate that the form of protection will vary depending upon the
level of protection afforded by the particular jurisdiction. Currently, our revenue is derived principally from our operations in
Malaysia where intellectual property protection may be limited and difficult to enforce. In such instances, we may seek protection
of our intellectual property through measures taken to increase the confidentiality of our findings.

We intend to register trademarks as a means of protecting the brand names of our companies and products. We intend
protect our trademarks against infringement and also seek to register design protection where appropriate.

We rely on trade secrets and unpatentable know-how that we seek to protect, in part, by confidentiality agreements. Our
policy is to require some of our employees to execute confidentiality agreements upon the commencement of employment with us.
These agreements provide that all confidential information developed or made known to the individual during the course of the
individual’s relationship with us is to be kept confidential and not disclosed to third parties except in specific limited circumstances.
The agreements also provide that all inventions conceived by the individual while rendering services to us shall be assigned to us as
the exclusive property of our company. There can be no assurance, however, that all persons who we desire to sign such agreements
will sign, or if they do, that these agreements will not be breached, that we would have adequate remedies for any breach, or that our
trade secrets or unpatentable know-how will not otherwise become known or be independently developed by competitors.

Government Regulation
Malaysia

All of our business segments are subject to the general laws in Malaysia governing businesses including labor, occupational
safety and health, general corporations, intellectual property and other similar laws.

Qil Palm Plantation and Durian Orchard

Our oil palm plantation and durian orchard business is subject to many additional laws addressing land, environmental,
labor, wildlife and crop cultivation matters. By way of example, we are subject to the Land Acquisition Act of 1960, which specifies
the conditions under which the Malaysian government may acquire by eminent domain private land (including our oil palm
plantation) to pursue its social policies. We are also subject to various environmental laws including the Environmental Quality
(Prescribed Activities) (Environmental Impact Assessment) Order 1987 which governs land clearing, air emissions, waste water
discharges and other similar matters, the Workers’ Minimum Standard of Housing & Amenities Act 1990 which requires us to
provide our plantation workers with reasonable housing and amenities, water, electricity and addresses other sanitation related
matters, other labor laws governing minimum wages, wage increases and occupational health and safety, the Pesticides Act 1974
(Pesticides Registration) Rules 1988, Pesticides (Licensing for sale and storage) Rules 1988 and Pesticides (Labeling) Regulations
1984 which govern the registration, use, labeling and storage of pesticides and the Protection of Wildlife Act 1972 which governs
the capture and destruction of certain protected wildlife.



We are also subject to taxes, tariffs, duties, subsidies and incentives and import and export restrictions on palm oil products,
foreign and domestic policies regarding genetically modified organisms, renewable fuel, and low carbon fuel mandates which can
influence the planting of species of crops, the location and size of crop production, and the volume and types of imports and exports.
These factors all affect the viability and volume of production of our products, and industry profitability.

International trade disputes can adversely affect the trade flow of our goods by limiting or disrupting trade between countries
or regions. Future government policies may adversely affect the supply of, demand for, and prices of our products, restrict our ability
to do business in its existing and target markets, and can negatively impact our revenues and operating results.

Real Estate

Our real estate investments are subject to extensive local, city, county and state rules and regulations regarding permitting,
zoning, subdivision, utilities and water quality as well as federal rules and regulations regarding air and water quality and protection
of endangered species and their habitats. Such regulation may delay development of our properties and result in higher than
anticipated developmental and administrative costs.

One of the distinguishing features of our Shah Alam 2 Eco Residential Development and Bandar Sungai Long High Grade
Villas Community projects is their emphasis on developing a sustainable green lifestyle to reduce their impact on the environment.
Accordingly, we expect to make additional environmental related expenditures in developing these projects as well as other projects
with an environmental theme. Based on an analysis of our operations in relation to current and presently anticipated environmental
requirements, we currently do not anticipate that these costs will have a material adverse effect on our future operations or financial
condition.

Seasonality
Our real estate business is not subject to seasonality.

Our oil palm plantation and durian orchard business is subject to seasonality in the growing cycles, procurement, and
transportation of our oilseeds. Price variations and availability of raw agricultural commodities may cause fluctuations in our working
capital levels. In addition, these seasonal trends will likely cause fluctuations in our quarterly results, including fluctuations in
sequential revenue growth rates.

Insurance

We maintain property, business interruption and casualty insurance which we believe is in accordance with customary
industry practices in Malaysia, but we cannot predict whether this insurance will be adequate to fully cover all potential hazards
incidental to our business.

Employees

As of January 31, 2017, we had 13 employees in Malaysia, all of which are full-time. Our employees are in the following
principal areas:

Administrative / Finance — 6
Management— 4
Plantation operations — 3

All of our employees are located in Malaysia and are primarily focused on our real estate businesses. None of our employees
are members of a trade union. We believe that we maintain good relationships with our employees, and have not experienced any
strikes or shutdowns and have not been involved in any labor disputes.

We are required to make contributions under a defined contribution pension plan for all of our eligible employees in
Malaysia. We are required to contribute a specified percentage of the participants’ relevant income based on their ages and wages
level. The total contributions made were $29,303 and $41,928, for the years ended October 31, 2016, and 2015, respectively.

Corporation Information
Our principal executive offices are located at E-5-2, Megan Avenue 1, Block E, Jalan Tun Razak, 50400 Kuala Lumpur,

Malaysia, telephone at +603 2162 0773, facsimile at +603 2161 0770. Our website is located at www. http://www.pgcg.cc. Copies
of our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to



the Exchange Act are available on our website. You may request copies of such filings free of charge by writing to our corporate
offices.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

We are a smaller reporting company as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and are not
required to provide the information under this item.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

We are a smaller reporting company as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and are not
required to provide the information under this item.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

We own the following properties:

Property Location Business Segment
\\VVacant land (54.1 acres) for development (1) Selangor, Malaysia Real Estate
\VVacant land (31 acres) for development Selangor, Malaysia Real Estate

15 Story Commercial Building Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia Real Estate

12 Story Commercial Building Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia Real Estate

Oil palm and Durian Plantation (643 acres) Pahang, Malaysia Plantation

(1) The land is subject to a 99-year leasehold, expiring July 30, 2100.

Our principal executive offices are located at E-5-2, Megan Avenue 1, Block E, Jalan Tun Razak, 50400 Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia, which is the above referenced 12 story commercial building. We believe that our current facilities are adequate for our
current needs. We believe that suitable additional space will be available on commercially reasonable terms as needed to
accommodate our operations.

15 Story Bank Loan

Effective October 31, 2014, PGCG Assets accepted the Letter of Offer from the Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad for a
credit facility (the “Loan”) consisting of a revolving line of credit, or the RC, in the amount of RM15,000,000 (approximately
$3,576,964) and a term loan, or the TL, in the amount of RM40,000,000 (approximately $9,538,571), for an aggregate of
RM55,000,000 (approximately $13,115,535). The Loan was used to pay off our existing loan with Hong Leong Bank Berhad on our
15 story commercial building located at No. 160, Menara CMY, Jalan Ampang, 50450 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia and to provide
working capital for PGCG Assets. The Loan is secured by the 15-story commercial office building “Menara CMY” in Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia, deed of assignment of rental proceeds over the rights and interest to the rental of the 15-story commercial office building
and is personally guaranteed by Weng Kung Wong, our Chief Executive Officer and Director, and also guaranteed by Union Hub
Technology Sdn. Bhd., our wholly owned subsidiary (“UHT”). The loan is also secured by a debenture incorporating fixed and
floating charge for RM55 million plus interest thereon over the assets of PGCG Assets.

Outstanding principal amounts due under the TL accrue interest at a rate of 1.00% per annum above the Base Lending Rate,
which is currently 6.85% per annum. The TL is repayable in monthly installments of RM476,898 (including interest) over a period
of 120 months and will mature in 2024. As of October 31, 2016, $8.2 million was outstanding under the TL.

As of October 31, 2016, $3.6 million was outstanding under the RC. Outstanding principal amounts due under the RC
accrue interest at a rate of 1.50% per annum above the bank’s cost of fund applicable at such time. At the end of each calendar
quarter, outstanding amounts due under the RC shall be repaid in full or, subject to the lender’s consent and the satisfaction of certain
additional requirements, rolled over to the next quarter at the end of each calendar quarter.

As a condition of the Loan, PGCG Assets was required to increase its paid up capital account to RM50,000,000.
Accordingly, PGCG Assets made a Bonus Issue of an additional 48,000,000 shares of its common stock on a pro rata basis to its
shareholders in proportion to the number of shares held by such shareholders, by way of capitalizing its Capital Surplus.

12 Story Bank Loan

In May 2013, PGCG Assets obtained a loan in the aggregate amount of RM9,840,000 (approximately $2,346,488) from
RHB Bank Berhad, a financial institution in Malaysia to finance the acquisition of a twelve story office building property, which
bears interest at a rate of 1.90% per annum below the lending rate, with an monthly instalment of RM57,045 (including interest),
variable rate quoted by the bank, with 288 monthly installments over a period of 24 years and will mature in 2037. The loan is



secured by the 12-story commercial office building “Megan Avenue” in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia and is personally guaranteed by
our director and Chief Executive Officer, Weng Kung Wong, the director of UHT, our subsidiary, Kok Wai Chai and UHT.

The foregoing descriptions of the loan agreements with each of Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad and RHB Bank Berhad
are qualified in their entirety by reference to the loan agreements, which are filed as Exhibits 10.5 through and including 10.8 to this
Annual Report and incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

There are no material pending legal proceedings to which we are a party or to which any of our property is subject, nor are
there any such proceedings known to be contemplated by governmental authorities. None of our directors, officers or affiliates is
involved in a proceeding adverse to our business or has a material interest adverse to our business.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

None.

PART I

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

(a) Market Information

The following table sets forth the high and low closing sale prices for the periods presented as reported on the Over the
Counter Bulletin Board. There is no established public trading market for our securities and a regular trading market may not develop,
or if developed, may not be sustained.

Price Range
High Low

Fiscal 2016

First quarter $ 101 % 0.12
Second quarter $ 012 $ 0.01
Third quarter $ 101 % 0.01
Fourth quarter $ 1.00 $ 0.26
Fiscal 2015

First quarter $ 050 $ 0.05
Second quarter $ 006 $ 0.06
Third quarter $ 006 $ 0.06
Fourth quarter $ 101 % 0.01

Our common stock is quoted on the Over the Counter Bulletin Board under the symbol PGCG. As of January 31, 2017,
the closing price of our securities was $0.17.

(b) Approximate Number of Holders of Common Stock

As of January 31, 2017, there were approximately 2341 shareholders of record of our common stock. Such number does
not include any shareholders holding shares in nominee or “street name”.

(c) Dividends

Holders of our common stock are entitled to receive such dividends as may be declared by our board of directors. We paid
no dividends during the periods reported herein, nor do we anticipate paying any dividends in the foreseeable future.

(d) Equity Compensation Plan Information

There are no options, warrants or convertible securities outstanding.

(e) Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities




The information set forth below describes our issuance of securities without registration under the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, during the year ended October 31, 2016, that were not previously disclosed in a Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q or in
a Current Report on Form 8-K: None.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

We are a smaller reporting company as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and are not
required to provide the information under this item.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS.

This discussion summarizes the significant factors affecting the operating results, financial condition, liquidity and cash
flows of the Company and its subsidiaries for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2016 and 2015. The discussion and analysis that
follow should be read together with the section entitled “Forward Looking Statements” and our consolidated financial statements
and the notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K.

Except for historical information, the matters discussed in this section are forward looking statements that involve risks
and uncertainties and are based upon judgments concerning various factors that are beyond the Company’s control. Consequently,
and because forward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties, the actual results and outcomes may differ
materially from the results and outcomes discussed in the forward-looking statements. You are urged to carefully review and
consider the various disclosures made by us in this report.

Currency and exchange rate

Unless otherwise noted, all currency figures quoted as “U.S. dollars”, “dollars” or “$” refer to the legal currency of the
United States. References to “MYR” or “RM” are to the Malaysian Ringgit, the legal currency of Malaysia. Throughout this report,
assets and liabilities of the Company’s subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rate on the balance sheet
date. Revenue and expenses are translated at average rates prevailing during the period. The gains and losses resulting from
translation of financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are recorded as a separate component of accumulated other
comprehensive income within the statement of stockholders’ equity.

Overview

During the fiscal year 2016, we operated in two business segments: (i) our oil palm and durian plantation business; and (ii)
our real estate business. Our oil palm and durian plantation business is operated through Virtual Setup Sdn. Bhd., or VSSB, and our
real estate business is primarily operated through PGCG Assets Holdings Sdn. Bhd., or PGCG Assets, and Dunford Corporation Sdn
Bhd.

Summarized financial information regarding each revenue generating segment for the year ended October 31, 2016 is as
follows:

Year ended October 31, 2016

Plantation Real Estate

Business Business Corporate Total
Revenues, net $ 108,516 $ 1564239 $ - % 1,672,755
Less: inter-company revenues — (26,028) — (26,028)
Revenues from external customers 108,516 1,538,211 - 1,646,727
Cost of revenues (35,585) (594,833) — (630,418)
Gross profit 72,931 943,378 - 1,016,309
Depreciation 13,801 500,793 14,327 528,921
Net income (loss) 2,290 (525,696) (388,116) (911,522)
Total assets 5,957,293 39,523,026 331,533 45,811,852
Expenditure for long-lived assets $ 7,764 $ 1,373 $ - $ 9,137

Our initial business plan launched in July 2010 broadly contemplated the development, distribution and operation of mobile
and online social networking, ecommerce and search products and services. However, as a result of the challenges we experienced
in implementing our m-commerce business plan, we entered the oil palm plantation and real estate businesses in 2012 and in 2014
discontinued our software business. Since the commencement of our business segments, we (through our subsidiaries):



e Acquired an oil palm plantation in Malaysia which is operated through VSSB;

e Acquired 21.8921 hectares (54.10 acres) of vacant development land located in Selangor, Malaysia, which is subject to a
99-year leasehold, expiring July 30, 2100;

e Acquired Dunford Corporation Sdn. Bhd., or Dunford, whose primary assets consist of two parcels of undeveloped land
located in Selangor, Malaysia aggregating approximately 31 acres;

e Acquired a 15 story commercial building located at Geran 10010, Lot 238 Section 43, Town and District of Kuala
Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia; and

e Acquired a 12 story commercial building located at Megan Avenue 1, No. 189, Jalan Tun Razak, 50400 Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia.

As we continue to develop, we may continue to experience significant fluctuations in revenue which may cause our gross
profit to fluctuate.

Challenges From Our Qil Palm Operations

The oil palm business is a highly regulated industry with prices subject to wide fluctuations due to factors beyond our
control such as weather conditions, competition, global demand and government policies. Management has limited experience
operating in this industry and may not be able to successfully navigate all industry specific factors in addition to any geopolitical
factors in Malaysia. If we are not able to successfully respond to any of these or other factors, our business operations and financial
results may be adversely affected. There can be no assurance that we will be able to successfully operate a multi-national oilseeds
business in conjunction with our other business segments given management’s limited experience.

We are focused on the maintenance and operation of our oil palm and durian plantation in Malaysia. We believe that the
value of our oil palm and durian plantation has increased since its acquisition , and while we have not pursued any discussions or
received any formal offers regarding the sale of our plantation, we may consider sales offers in the future if a sale would maximize
return to our investors.

We commenced planting premium durian, of the “Musang King” variety, in the first quarter of calendar year 2014. As of
the date of this report, we have replanted 130 acres of our oil palm with premium durian trees. In November 2016, we began planting
an additional 150 acres of durian. We planted an average of 35 trees per acre and anticipate an average production of 50 grade A
fruits per tree for each of the two harvesting seasons per year.

We have used the latest planting technology in 2016, which we hope will reduce the maturity time of the durian tree from
5 years to 3 years. All the durian trees planted on the 130 acres will begin to fruit by 2019 at the latest. Accordingly, we do not
expect revenue from our durian orchard until calendar year 2019. At this time, we do not expect our durian orchard to exceed 280
acres in the near future.

Challenges From Our Real Estate Operations

Commercial Buildings

We generate rental income from our 12 story and 15 story commercial properties and anticipate generating income from
the sale of developed properties. As of the date of this report, 2 of the 12 stories of our 12 story building have been leased to tenants
at market rates. We are actively attempting to lease our 8 vacant units. We occupy the remaining two stories as our corporate
headquarters.

Our 15 story building is fully leased to Le Apple which operates a boutique hotel on the premises. The Rental Agreement
has an initial term of one (1) year commencing December 1, 2013 and expiring November 30, 2014. Provided that there are no
existing breaches by Le Apple, we will be required to renew the lease for additional one-year terms up to twenty-nine years, for a
maximum aggregate term of thirty years. Our current monthly rental rate is RM400,000 (approximately $95,386), which rate is
increased every three years by 5% to 10% or to the then prevailing market rate, whichever is lower. Our current rate represents a
decrease from our initial monthly rental rate of RM550,000 due to unfavorable market conditions.

Residential Property Development

On June 10, 2015, we received approval to develop our leasehold land located in Puncak Alam. Due to challenges in the
current Malaysian real property market, in November 2015, we submitted a request to convert some our planned semi-detached and
bungalow home parcels into cluster semi-detached homes to improve the marketability of the development. We received approval
of our revised development plan on March 4, 2016.

We believe that we will require approximately RM5 to RM10 million in the aggregate to market, promote and complete
construction of our Shah Alam 2 Eco Residential Development Project. To mitigate our development risk, on July 1, 2016, we



entered into a MOU with YTB to jointly develop our Puncak Alam land. YTB is currently conducting its feasibility studies and
business and market due diligence. In the event YTB elects not to proceed with the Proposed JV, we will reassess market conditions
to determine whether we will seek additional development partners, proceed on other bases or suspend development efforts until
market conditions improve. As of the approval date of this report, no definitive agreement has been concluded.

On September 8, 2016, the Urban Wellbeing, Housing and Local Government Ministry of Malaysia announced the
introduction of an initiative that will enable property developers to provide loans to buyers at an annual interest rate between 12 and
18 percent. Developers will be able to begin applying to the ministry on September 8, 2016, for a moneylending license. It is our
understanding that loans made pursuant to such license will not be restricted to first time homebuyers.

We are considering applying for such money lender’s license to enable us to provide financing to prospective buyers of our
future properties. If we apply and are successful in obtaining such license, we hope that we will be able to boost sales of our properties
that we have earmarked for development.

We continue to maintain a cautious but positive outlook for the residential market based upon Malaysia’s stable employment
outlook, growth in household income, formation of new households, and increased demand for affordable residential property from
first time home buyers. Developers such as us are facing challenges of inconsistent supply and high cost of labor, increased costs of
building materials (such as cement and steel bars) and general increased costs of doing business. Our market is also sensitive to
changes in lending rates and lending requirements as many homebuyers rely on financing to make purchases. As a result, government
or bank policies that result in increased interest rates and or stricter lending requirements may adversely affect the sales of our
developed properties.

Results of Operations

As of October 31, 2016, we suffered from continuous operating loss from prior years and working capital deficit of
$5,111,507. Our continuation as a going concern is dependent upon improving our profitability and the continuing financial support
from our stockholders or other capital sources. Management believes that the continuing financial support from the existing
shareholders and external financing will provide the additional cash to meet our obligations as they become due.

These consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the
recoverability and classification of assets and liabilities that may result in the Company not being able to continue as a going concern.

The following table sets forth certain operational data for the years indicated:

Fiscal Years Ended October 31,

2016 2015
Total net revenues $ 1,646,727 $ 1,919,743
Plantation business 108,516 156,642
Real estate 1,538,211 1,763,101
Total cost of revenue (630,418) (739,867)
Plantation business (35,585) (83,728)
Real estate (594,833) (656,139)
Gross profit 1,016,309 1,179,876
Plantation business 72,931 72,914
Real estate 943,378 1,106,962
General and administrative expenses (626,395) (1,046,125)
Other income, net (expense) (1,047,898) (1,090,244)
Income tax expense (253,538) (636,941)
Net loss (911,522) (1,593,434)

Comparison of the fiscal years ended October 31, 2016 and October 31, 2015

Net Revenue. We generated net revenue of $1,646,727 and $1,919,743 for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2016 and
2015, respectively, with our oil palm and durian plantation and real estate businesses accounting for 7% and 93% of the net revenue,
respectively, for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2016. For the fiscal year ended October 31, 2015, our oil palm and durian
plantation and real estate businesses accounted for approximately 8% and 92% of net revenue, respectively.

Our oil palm and durian plantation business experienced a 31% decline with net revenue decreasing from $156,642 for the
year ended October 31, 2015, to $108,516 for the same period ended October 31, 2016. Revenue from our plantation business
decreased when we contracted out the management and operation of our oil palm plantation from September 2015 to September
2016, as well as utilizing 130 acres of the land for durian plantation.



Our real estate business experienced a 13% decrease in revenue from $1,763,101 for the year ended October 31, 2015, to
$1,538,211 for the same period ended October 31, 2016. The decrease in our real estate revenue is attributable to the decrease in
rental income from both the twelve story and fifteen story buildings.

Cost of Revenue. Cost of revenue as a percentage of net revenue was approximately 38%, or $630,418, for the fiscal year
ended October 31, 2016, with real estate and plantation sales accounting for approximately 39% and 33%, respectively, of the
respective net revenue. Cost of revenue for the year ended October 31, 2015 was $739,867. Cost of revenue as a percentage of net
revenue for the year ended October 31, 2015 was approximately 39%, with real estate and plantation sales accounting for
approximately 37% and 53%, respectively, of the respective net revenue.

Gross Profit. We achieved a gross profit of $1,016,309 for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2016, as compared to
$1,179,876 for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2015, with real estate rental income and plantation sales accounting for
approximately 93% and 7%, respectively of total gross profit. The decrease in gross profit is primarily attributable to the change in
our plantation business model and lower rental income on our commercial properties.

Once we begin real estate development, we expect gross profit derived from our real estate business to gradually increase
as we commence sales activities with respect to our developed properties. We also expect our plantation revenue to increase once
our premium durian orchard has matured and is able to produce grade A fruits for distribution. We expect the fruits to begin
generating revenue sometime in 2019.

General and Administrative Expenses (“G&A ). We incurred G&A expenses of $626,395 for the fiscal year ended October
31, 2016, representing a decrease of 40%, as compared to $ 1,046,125 for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2015. The decrease in
G&A is primarily attributable to lower staff cost in fiscal 2016. Also, in fiscal 2015, we incurred consultancy fees on the development
of the Puncak Alam project. No such costs were incurred in fiscal 2016.

G&A as a percentage of net revenue was approximately 38% and 54% for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2016 and
2015, respectively. As a general matter, we expect our G&A to increase in the foreseeable future as we acquire real estate or other
businesses and assets.

Other Income, net. We incurred net other expenses of $1,047,898 for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2016, as compared
to $1,090,244 for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2015. The decrease is attributable primarily to a decrease in interest rate charged
on our bank loans. Our net other expenses for the years ended October 31, 2016 and 2015 consisted primarily of interest expense on
our bank loans. In fiscal 2016, we recorded an impairment of $135,597 on our investments, resulting from the other-than-temporary
decline in their fair value.

Income Tax Expense. We recorded income tax expenses of $253,538 and $636,941 for the fiscal years ended October 31,
2016 and 2015, respectively. In fiscals 2016 and 2015, we recorded under-accrual of estimated Malaysian income tax of $9,692 and
$271,568, respectively, for previous years. The Malaysian income tax in fiscals 2016 and 2015 was mainly related to the rental
income being taxed as a non-business source pursuant to the Malaysian income tax rules.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of October 31, 2016, we had cash and cash equivalents of $685,876, accounts receivable of $137,207 and incurred a net
loss of $911,522 for fiscal 2016.

As of October 31, 2015, we had cash and cash equivalents of $836,794, accounts receivable of $112,439 and incurred a net
loss of $1,593,434 for fiscal 2015.

Our ratio of current assets to current liabilities was 0.19:1 and 0.50:1 as of October 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

We expect to incur significantly greater expenses in the near future, including the contractual obligations that we discussed
below, to begin development activities. We also expect our general and administrative expenses to increase as we expand our finance
and administrative staff, add infrastructure, and incur additional costs related to being an accelerated filer, including directors’ and
officers’ insurance and increased professional fees.

Our PRC Subsidiary

The de-registration of our PRC subsidiary was approved by the PRC tax office in April 2015 and was approved by PRC
State Administration of Industry and Commerce in August 2015.

As of October 31, 2016, the amount of net assets held by our PRC subsidiary was $0.



As of October 31, 2015, the amount of net assets held by our PRC subsidiary was $74,595, all of which cash is restricted.

We have never paid dividends on our Common Stock. Our present policy is to apply cash to investments in product
development, acquisitions or expansion; consequently, we do not expect to pay dividends on Common Stock in the foreseeable
future.

Going Concern Uncertainties

Our continuation as a going concern is dependent upon improving our profitability and the continuing financial support
from our stockholders. Our sources of capital in the past have included the sale of equity securities, which include common stock
sold in private transactions and public offerings, capital leases and short-term and long-term debts. In fiscal 2015, we obtained new
short-term bank borrowings of $4.0 million. In fiscal year 2014, we raised approximately $6.7 million from sales of the securities of
our subsidiaries. While we believe that we will obtain external financing and the existing shareholders will continue to provide the
additional cash to meet our obligations as they become due, there can be no assurance that we will be able to raise such additional
capital resources on satisfactory terms. We believe that our current cash and other sources of liquidity discussed below are adequate
to support operations for at least the next 12 months.

Fiscal Year Ended October 31,

2016 2015
Net cash used in operating activities $ (162,076) $ (518,504)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 1,685,549 (2,718,598)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (1,691,179) 2,517,508

Net Cash Used In Operating Activities.

For the fiscal year ended October 31, 2016, net cash used in operating activities was $162,076, which consisted primarily
of a net loss (excluding non-cash depreciation and impairment on available-for-sale securities) of $247,004 and a decrease in accrued
liabilities and other payables of $39,778.

For the fiscal year ended October 31, 2015, net cash used in operating activities was $518,504, which consisted primarily
of a net loss (excluding non-cash depreciation and bad debt written off) of $976,827 and a decrease in rental deposits from tenants
of $118,894, offset by an increase in income tax payable of $296,773, an increase in deferred tax liabilities of $216,222, and an
increase in accrued liabilities and other payables of $61,986.

We expect rental income from our real estate operations to stabilize once our two commercial properties are at or near full
capacity. We expect to continue to rely on cash generated through financing from our existing shareholders and private placements
of our securities, however, to finance our operations and future acquisitions.

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Investing Activities.

For the fiscal year ended October 31, 2016, net cash provided by investing activities was $1,685,549, which is primarily
attributable to a decrease in time deposits of $1,731,975, offset by payments of plantation development costs of $37,289.

For the fiscal year ended October 31, 2015, net cash used in investing activities was $2,718,598, which is primarily
attributable to an increase in time deposits made by us of $1,902,417, purchase of the marketable securities of $465,606, pay ments
of plantation development costs of $44,153, an increase in construction in progress of $301,354 and the purchase of plant, property
and equipment of $17,291, offset by the sales proceeds received from disposal of plant and equipment of $12,223.

We expect investing cash outflows to increase when we develop our durian plantation until the orchard matures and begins
to generate revenues in 2019 at the earliest. We also expect investing cash outflows to increase due to expenditures associated with
developing our residential projects.

Net Cash (Used In) Provided By Financing Activities.

For the fiscal year ended October 31, 2016, net cash used in financing activities was $1,691,179 consisting primarily of
repayments of advances from Weng Kung Wong, our Chief Executive Officer and director, of $924,780 and repayments on bank
loans of $764,215.

For the fiscal year ended October 31, 2015, net cash provided by financing activities was $2,517,508, consisting primarily
of proceeds from new bank borrowings of $10,494,084 and revolving line of credit of $3,997,442, offset by the repayments of
advances from Weng Kung Wong, our Chief Executive Officer and director, of $1,051,548, repayment on bank loans of $10,920,071
and payments on a finance lease of $2,399.



Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no outstanding off-balance sheet guarantees, interest rate swap transactions or foreign currency contracts. We do
not engage in trading activities involving non-exchange traded contracts.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

We had the following contractual obligations and commercial commitments as of October 31, 2016:

Less than 1 More than 5

Contractual Obligations Total Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years Years
$ $ $ $ $

Amount due to related parties 1,387,345 108,149 1,279,196 - -
Commercial commitments
Bank borrowing repayment 13,971,720 4,421,400 1,875,505 2,159,964 5,514,851
Finance lease obligation 3,214 2,147 1,067 - -
Total obligations 15,362,279 4,531,696 3,155,768 2,159,964 5,514,851

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires our management to make assumptions, estimates and judgments that affect the amounts reported, including the notes thereto,
and related disclosures of commitments and contingencies, if any. We have identified certain accounting policies that are significant
to the preparation of our financial statements. These accounting policies are important for an understanding of our financial condition
and results of operations. Critical accounting policies are those that are most important to the presentation of our financial condition
and results of operations and require management's subjective or complex judgment, often as a result of the need to make estimates
about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain and may change in subsequent periods. Certain accounting estimates are
particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting
the estimate may differ significantly from management's current judgments. We believe the following accounting policies are critical
in the preparation of our financial statements.

. Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. We extend unsecured credit to our customers
in the ordinary course of business but mitigates the associated risks by performing credit checks and actively pursuing past due
accounts. An allowance for doubtful accounts is established and determined based on managements’ assessment of known
requirements, aging of receivables, payment history, the customer’s current credit worthiness and the economic environment. We
consider the allowance for doubtful accounts for any estimated losses resulting from the inability of our customers to make required
payments. For the receivables that are past due or not being paid according to payment terms, the appropriate actions are taken to
exhaust all means of collection, including seeking legal resolution in a court of law. Account balances are charged off against the
allowance after all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote. We do not have any
off-balance-sheet credit exposure related to our customers.

Based upon the aforementioned criteria, we wrote off $nil and $25,850 accounts receivable on uncollectible rental receivable
for the years ended October 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

o Available-for-sale marketable securities

Available-for-sale marketable securities are reported at fair value using the market approach based on the quoted prices in
active markets at the reporting date. We classify the valuation techniques that use these inputs as Level 1 of fair value measurements.
Any unrealized losses that are deemed other-than-temporary are included in current period earnings and removed from accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss).

Realized gains and losses on marketable securities are included in current period earnings. For purposes of computing realized
gains and losses, the cost basis of each investment sold is generally based on the weighted average cost method.

We regularly evaluate whether the decline in fair value of available-for-sale securities is other-than-temporary and objective
evidence of impairment could include:

e The severity and duration of the fair value decline;



o Deterioration in the financial condition of the issuer; and
e Evaluation of the factors that could cause individual securities to have an other-than-temporary impairment.

During the year ended October 31, 2016, $135,597 of losses previously classified in other comprehensive losses were
reclassified into earnings to recognize an other-than-temporary decline in fair value. No such other-than-temporary decline in fair
value was recognized during the year ended October 31, 2015.

During the years ended October 31, 2016 and 2015, we invested in equity securities listed on Bursa Malaysia with a total cost
of $265,606 and escrow funds (which invested in equity securities listed in the U.S.) with a total cost of $200,000. The Company
entered into an escrow agreement with Peijin Wu Hoppe (“Hoppe™), our former director, to set up an escrow fund up to $500,000 as
a reserve to indemnify Hoppe from any claim of liability until July 29, 2022, the seventh year anniversary of the termination of
Director Retainer Agreement, or any mutual agreement with Hoppe and us. The unrealized loss representing the change in fair value
of $60,590 and $106,783 was charged against accumulated other comprehensive income for the years ended October 31, 2016 and
2015, respectively.

o Deferred development costs

Deferred development costs consist of replanting costs of durian such as soil amendments, cultivation, fertilization and
purchase costs of sapling. Costs related to durian development projects on our plantation land, are capitalized during the sapling,
developing and planting durian fruit bunches and when the harvests are substantially available for commercial sale. Deferred
development costs will then commence to be amortized as components of plantation costs and expenses.

o Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the following expected useful lives from the date on which the assets become
fully operational:

Categories Location of properties Expected useful life

Freehold plantation land Oil palm and durian plantation in Malaysia Indefinite, as per land titles

Leasehold land under development Leasehold land in Puncak Alam, Malaysia Remaining lease life of 88

years, as per land titles

Freehold land under development Freehold land in Sungai Long, Cheras, Indefinite, as per land titles
Selangor, Malaysia

Freehold land and land improvement Land portion of 15 story building “Menara Indefinite, as per property

for rental purpose CMY?” in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia titles

Building structure and improvements Building structure of commercial buildings in 33 years

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia, including: 12 story

building “Megan Avenue” and 15 story

building “Menara CMY”
Office furniture and equipment 3-10 years
Motor vehicle 5 years

Expenditure for maintenance and repairs is expensed as incurred. The gain or loss on the disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant assets and is recognized in the
statement of operations.

Long-lived assets primarily include freehold plantation land, leasehold land held for development, freehold land and land
improvement for rental purpose and building structure and improvements. In accordance with the provision of ASC Topic 360,
“Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, we generally conduct our annual impairment evaluation to its long-lived assets,
usually in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, or more frequently if indicators of impairment exist, such as a significant sustained
change in the business climate. The recoverability of long-lived assets is measured at the lowest level group. If the total of the
expected undiscounted future net cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset, a loss is recognized for the difference
between the fair value and carrying amount of the asset. There has been no impairment charge for the years presented.

We have separately identified the portion of freehold land and building structure, in which freehold land is not subject to
amortization and buildings are to be amortized over 33 years on a straight-line method, based on applicable local laws and practice.

Policy for Capitalizing Development Cost

The cost of buildings and improvements includes the purchase price of property, legal fees and other acquisition costs. Costs
directly related to planning, developing, initial leasing and constructing a property are capitalized and classified as Real Estate in the



consolidated balance sheets. Capitalized development costs include interest, and other direct project costs incurred during the period
of development. As of October 31, 2016 and 2015, there was no such capitalized interest.

A variety of costs are incurred in the acquisition, development and leasing of properties. After determination is made to
capitalize a cost, it is allocated to the specific component of a project that is benefited. Determination of when a development project
is substantially complete and capitalization must cease involves a degree of judgment. We adopt the capitalization policy on
development properties, which is guided by ASC Topic 835-20 “Interest — Capitalization of Interest” and ASC Topic 970 “Real
Estate - General”. The costs of land and buildings under development include specifically identifiable costs. The capitalized costs
include pre-construction costs essential to the development of the property, development costs, construction costs, interest costs,
salaries and related costs and other costs incurred during the period of development. We consider a construction project as
substantially completed and held available for occupancy upon the receipt of certificates of occupancy, but no later than one year
from cessation of major construction activity. We cease capitalization on the portion (1) substantially completed and (2) occupied
or held available for occupancy, and we capitalize only those costs associated with the portion under construction.

We capitalize leasing costs which include commissions paid to outside brokers, legal costs incurred to negotiate and document
a lease agreement and any internal costs that may be applicable. We allocate these costs to individual tenant leases and amortize
them over the related lease term.

. Finance leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership to the lessee, other than legal title, are accounted for
as finance leases. Substantially all of the risks or benefits of ownership are deemed to have been transferred if any one of the four
criteria is met: (i) transfer of ownership to the lessee at the end of the lease term, (ii) the lease containing a bargain purchase option,
(iii) the lease term exceeding 75% of the estimated economic life of the leased asset, (iv) the present value of the minimum lease
payments exceeding 90% of the fair value. At the inception of a finance lease, we as the lessee records an asset and an obligation at
an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments. The leased asset is amortized over the shorter of the lease term
or its estimated useful life if title does not transfer to us, while the leased asset is depreciated in accordance with our depreciation
policy if the title is to eventually transfer to us. The periodic rent payments made during the lease term are allocated between a
reduction in the obligation and interest element using the effective interest method in accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic
835-30, “Imputation of Interest”.

o Revenue recognition

We recognize our revenue in accordance with ASC Topic 605, “Revenue Recognition”, upon the delivery of our plantation
products when: (1) title and risk of loss are transferred; (2) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; (3) there are no continuing
obligations to the customer; and (4) the collection of related accounts receivable is probable. Our sale arrangements do not contain
general rights of return.

(@) Plantation sales

Revenue from the sale of oil palm is recognized upon confirmation of the weight of fresh fruit bunches and transport
to the customer, when there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement, delivery has occurred and risk of loss has
passed, the sales price is fixed or determinable at the date of sale, and collectibility is reasonably assured.

Pursuant to a 8-K filing on September 23, 2015, in order to concentrate on durian plantation, we suspended the direct
operation of oil palm plantation and leased out the oil palm land to a third party, BJ Bentong Trading Company
(“BJ”) under an operating lease for 30 months from September 21, 2015 to March 20, 2018. Pursuant to this tenancy
agreement, the tenant is entitled to manage the plantation, harvest and sell palm oil fresh fruit bunches and receive
all proceeds thereto. Rental income of $93,530 and $18,788 was recognized for the year ended October 31, 2016 and
2015, respectively, and was included in revenue from plantation business.

On September 29, 2016, we entered into a letter with BJ agreement pursuant to which the parties mutually agreed to
terminate the Tenancy Agreement upon the following conditions:

1. BJ’s deposit of RM70,000 shall be forfeited by us;

2. All staff, laborers, machinery and tools shall be removed from the premises and the premises returned to us no
later than September 30, 2016; and

3. BJshall indemnify us for a period of six (6) months after the termination of the Tenancy Agreement against all
and any damages, loss, expenses or other cost on the property and or the oil palm trees regardless of whether
such damage arose as a result of the act, omission or negligence of BJ or its agents and representatives.

During the year ended October 31, 2016, we recognized other income of $16,983 from forfeiture of BJ’s deposit.



(b) Rental income

We generally lease the units under operating leases with terms of two years or less. For the years ended October 31,
2016 and 2015, we have recorded $1,538,211 and $1,763,101, respectively, in lease revenue, based upon our annual
rental over the life of the lease under operating lease, using the straight-line method in accordance with ASC Topic
970-605, “Real Estate — General — Revenue Recognition” (“ASC Topic 970-605”).

. Rental concession

We lease store location and office spaces to the tenants under operating lease arrangements. The Company receives rental
income from the real estates we own for a stated period of times. Rental income is recognized over the life of the operating lease
agreement as it is earned in the period under ASC Topic 970-605. The typical leases contain initial terms of one to two years with
renewal options and do not contain escalating rent amounts. Under the lease agreement of Menara CMY, the initial term of lease is
one year. Provided that there are no existing breaches by the tenant, an irrecoverable annual renewal option is granted for up to
twenty-nine years, with a maximum aggregate term of thirty years. Six-months’ rent-free period under the operating lease agreement
is treated as long-term rent concession, which is being amortized as an offset to revenues collected over the term of the underlying
lease of 30 years on a straight-line basis.

. Cost of revenues

Cost of revenue on plantation sales includes material supplies, subcontracting costs and transportation costs incurred for
planting, fertilizing and harvesting the oil palm tree. Transport and handling costs associated with the distribution of fresh fruit
bunches to the customers are also included in cost of revenues.

Cost related to real estate business shown on the accompanying statements of operations include costs associated with land
tax, on-site and property management personnel, repairs and maintenance, property insurance, marketing, landscaping and other on-
site and related administrative costs. Utility expenses are paid directly by tenants.

o Comprehensive income

ASC Topic 220, “Comprehensive Income” establishes standards for reporting and display of comprehensive income, its
components and accumulated balances. Comprehensive income as defined includes all changes in equity during a period from non-
owner sources. Accumulated comprehensive income, as presented in the accompanying statements of stockholders’ equity consists
of changes in unrealized gains and losses on foreign currency translation. This comprehensive income is not included in the
computation of income tax expense or benefit.

. Income taxes

Income taxes are determined in accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 740, “Income Taxes” (“ASC Topic 740”). Under
this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using enacted income tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. Any effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in
income in the period that includes the enactment date.

ASC 740 prescribes a comprehensive model for how companies should recognize, measure, present, and disclose in their
financial statements uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return. Under ASC 740, tax positions must initially
be recognized in the financial statements when it is more likely than not the position will be sustained upon examination by the tax
authorities. Such tax positions must initially and subsequently be measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that has a greater
than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the tax authority assuming full knowledge of the position and
relevant facts.

We conduct major businesses in Malaysia are subject to tax in its own jurisdiction. As a result of our business activities, we
will file separate tax returns that are subject to examination by the local and foreign tax authorities.

o Foreign currencies translation

Transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency are translated into the functional currency using the applicable exchange rates at the balance sheet dates. The
resulting exchange differences are recorded in the statement of operations.



The functional currency of the Company is the United States Dollars (“US$”) and the accompanying financial statements have
been expressed in US$, which is the reporting currency. In addition, we maintain our books and record in a local currency, Malaysian
Ringgit (“MYR” or “RM”), Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) and Renminbi Yuan (“RMB”), which is functional currency as being the
primary currency of the economic environment in which the entity operates.

In general, for consolidation purposes, assets and liabilities of its subsidiaries whose functional currency is not US$ are
translated into US$, in accordance with ASC Topic 830-30, “Translation of Financial Statements”, using the exchange rate on the
balance sheet date. Revenues and expenses are translated at average rates prevailing during the period. The gains and losses resulting
from translation of financial statements of foreign subsidiary are recorded as a separate component of accumulated other
comprehensive income within the statement of stockholders’ equity. The gains and losses are recorded as a separate component 0f
accumulated other comprehensive income within the statement of stockholders’ equity.

Translation of amounts from the local currency of us into US$1 has been made at the following exchange rates for the
respective years:

As of and for the year ended October

31,
2016 2015
Year-end RMB : US$1 exchange rate 6.7732 6.3185
Yearly average RMB : US$1 exchange rate 6.5628 6.1721
Year-end HK$ : US$1 exchange rate 7.7548 7.7502
Yearly average HK$ : US$1 exchange rate 7.7606 7.7528
Year-end MYR : US$1 exchange rate 41935 4.2960
Yearly average MYR : US$1 exchange rate 4.1217 3.7524

o Related parties

Parties, which can be a corporation or individual, are considered to be related if we have the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Companies
are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common significant influence.

o Segment reporting

ASC Topic 280, “Segment Reporting” establishes standards for reporting information about operating segments on a basis
consistent with our internal organization structure as well as information about geographical areas, business segments and major
customers in financial statements. During the years ended October 31, 2016 and 2015, we operate in two reportable operating
segments in Malaysia.

. Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying value of our financial instruments (excluding obligation under finance lease): cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, deposits and other receivables, deferred revenue, income tax payable, amount due to a director, accrued liabilities and
other payables approximate at their fair values because of the short-term nature of these financial instruments.

Management believes, based on the current market prices or interest rates for similar debt instruments, the fair value of its
obligation under finance lease approximates the carrying amount.

We also follow the guidance of the ASC Topic 820-10, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures” ("ASC 820-10"), with
respect to financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value. ASC 820-10 establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows:

Level 1 : Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets;

Level 2 : Inputs, other than the quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 : Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which require the reporting entity to develop its
own assumptions

. Recent accounting pronouncements
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which requires an entity to recognize

the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers. ASU 2014-09
will replace most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP when it becomes effective. In July 2015, the FASB approved



a one-year deferral of the effective date of the new revenue recognition standard. The amendments in ASU 2014-09 are effective for
public companies for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The
standard permits the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU
2016-08, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), Principal versus Agent Considerations (Reporting Revenue versus
Net). In April 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-10, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), Identifying Performance
Obligations and Licensing. In May 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-11, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) and
Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815) - Rescission of SEC Guidance Because of ASU 2014-09 and 2014-16, and ASU 2016-12,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) - Narrow Scope Improvements and Practical Expedients. These ASUs clarify
the implementation guidance on a few narrow areas and adds some practical expedients to the guidance Topic 606. The Company is
evaluating the effect the ASUs will have on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. We have not yet selected a
transition method nor have we determined the effect of these standards on our ongoing financial reporting.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, "Presentation of Financial Statements-Going concern (Subtopic 205-40) which
provides guidance to an organization’s management, with principles and definitions that are intended to reduce diversity in the timing
and content of disclosures that are commonly provided by organizations today in the financial statement footnotes. This guidance in
ASU 2014-15 is effective for annual periods ending after December 15, 2016, and interim periods within annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2016. Early application is permitted for annual or interim reporting periods for which the financial state ments
have not previously been issued. We do not expect that the adoption will have a material impact on our consolidated financial
statements.

In November 2014, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-16, Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815):
Determining Whether the Host Contract in a Hybrid Financial Instrument Issued in the Form of a Share Is More Akin to Debt or to
Equity (a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force). The amendments permit the use of the Fed Funds Effective Swap
Rate (also referred to as the Overnight Index Swap Rate, or OIS) as a benchmark interest rate for hedge accounting purposes. Public
business entities are required to implement the new requirements in fiscal years (and interim periods within those fiscal years)
beginning after December 15, 2015. We do not expect the adoption of ASU 2014-16 to have a material impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02 "Consolidation (Topic 810): Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis."
ASU 2015-02 changes the analysis that a reporting entity must perform to determine whether it should consolidate certain types of
legal entities. It is effective for annual reporting periods, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2015.
Early adoption is permitted, including adoption in an interim period. We are currently in the process of evaluating the impact of the
adoption of ASU 2015-02 on our consolidated financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03 “Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs”, which changes the
presentation of debt issuance costs in the financial statements. ASU 2015-03 requires an entity to present such costs in the balance
sheet as a direct deduction from the related debt liability rather than as an asset. Amortization of the costs will continue to be reported
as interest expense. The guidance is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, with early adoption
permitted. The guidance will be applied retrospectively to each period presented. The adoption of this standard update is not expected
to have any impact on our financial statements.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-11, Inventory, which requires an entity to measure inventory within the scope at the
lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business, less
reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal, and transportation. The effective date for the standard is for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2016. Early adoption is permitted. We do not expect the adoption of ASU 2015-11 to have a material
impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In September 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-16, Business Combinations (Topic 805): Simplifying the Accounting for
Measurement-Period Adjustments. To simplify the accounting for adjustments made to provisional amounts recognized in a business
combination, the amendments eliminate the requirement to retrospectively account for those adjustments. For public business
entities, the amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, including interim periods within those
fiscal years. The amendments should be applied prospectively to adjustments to provisional amounts that occur after the effective
date with earlier application permitted for financial statements that have not been issued. We do not expect the adoption of ASU
2015-16 to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, “Income Taxes (Topic 740): Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred
Taxes”. To simplify the presentation of deferred income taxes, the amendments in this update require that deferred income tax
liabilities and assets be classified as noncurrent in a classified statement of financial position. The amendments in ASU 2015-17 are
effective for public business entities for financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and
interim periods within those annual periods. The amendments may be applied prospectively to all deferred tax liabilities and assets
or retrospectively to all periods presented. We do not expect that the adoption will have a material impact on our consolidated
financial statements.



In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, “Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.” The amendments in this update require all equity investments to be
measured at fair value with changes in the fair value recognized through net income (other than those accounted for under equity
method of accounting or those that result in consolidation of the investee). The amendments in this update also require an entity to
present separately in other comprehensive income the portion of the total change in the fair value of a liability resulting from a
change in the instrument-specific credit risk when the entity has elected to measure the liability at fair value in accordance with the
fair value option for financial instruments. The amendments in ASU 2016-01 are effective for public companies for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal years. We do not expect that the adoption will have
a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The new standard establishes a right-of-use
(“ROU”) model that requires a lessee to record a ROU asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet for all leases with terms longer
than 12 months. Leases will be classified as either finance or operating, with classification affecting the pattern of expense
recognition in the income statement. The new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including
interim periods within those fiscal years. A modified retrospective transition approach is required for lessees for capital and operating
leases existing at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the financial statements, with
certain practical expedients available. We do not expect that the adoption will have a material impact on our consolidated financial
statements.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-07, Simplifying the Transition to the Equity Method of Accounting, which
eliminates the requirement to apply the equity method of accounting retrospectively when a reporting entity obtains significant
influence over a previously held investment. The amendments in ASU 2016-07 are effective for public companies for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2016 including interim periods therein. Early adoption is permitted. The new standard should be
applied prospectively for investments that qualify for the equity method of accounting after the effective date. We do not expect that
the adoption will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-09, Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting, which
includes amendments to accounting for income taxes at settlement, forfeitures, and net settlements to cover withholding taxes. The
amendments in ASU 2016-09 are effective for public companies for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim
periods within those annual periods. Early adoption is permitted but requires all elements of the amendments to be adopted at once
rather than individually. We are evaluating the effect that ASU No. 2016-09 will have on our consolidated financial statements and
related disclosures.

In June 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2016-13, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic
326), which requires entities to measure all expected credit losses for financial assets held at the reporting date based on historical
experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts. This replaces the existing incurred loss model and is
applicable to the measurement of credit losses on financial assets measured at amortized cost. This guidance is effective for fiscal
years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2019. Early application will be permitted for all
entities for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2018. We are currently evaluating
the impact that the standard will have on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments. ASU 2016-
15 clarifies the presentation and classification of certain cash receipts and cash payments in the statement of cash flows. This ASU
is effective for public business entities for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2017.
Early adoption is permitted. We are currently assessing the potential impact of ASU 2016-15 on our financial statements and related
disclosures.

In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-16—Income Taxes (Topic 740): Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets Other
Than Inventory. This ASU improves the accounting for the income tax consequences of intra-entity transfers of assets other than
inventory. This ASU is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning after December 15, 2017. Early
adoption is permitted. We do not anticipate that the adoption of this ASU to have a significant impact on our consolidated financial
statements.

In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-17, Consolidation (Topic 810): Interests Held through Related Parties That
Are Under Common Control. The amendments in this ASU change how a reporting entity that is the single decision maker of a
variable interest entity should treat indirect interests in the entity held through related parties that are under common control with
the reporting entity when determining whether it is the primary beneficiary of that variable interest entity. The ASU is effective for
fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning after December 15, 2016. We do not expect the adoption of this ASU
to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.



In November 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-18 (ASU 2016-18), Statement of Cash Flows:
Restricted Cash. This ASU provides guidance on the classification of restricted cash in the statement of cash flows. The amendments
in this ASU are effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is permitted. The
amendments in the ASU should be adopted on a retrospective basis. We do not expect that adoption of this ASU to have a material
effect on our consolidated financial statements.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-setting bodies that do not require
adoption until a future date are not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements upon adoption.

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

We are a smaller reporting company as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and are not required to
provide the information under this item.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Prime Global Capital Group Incorporated

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Prime Global Capital Group Incorporated and its subsidiaries
(the “Company”) as of October 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss,
changes in stockholders' equity and cash flows for the each of the years in the two-year period ended October 31, 2016. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as of October 31, 2016 and 2015, and the consolidated results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended October 31, 2016, in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going
concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has a working capital deficiency, accumulated
deficit from recurring net losses and significant short-term debt obligations maturing in less than one year as of October 31, 2016.
All these factors raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. Management's plans in regard to these
matters are also discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements do not include
any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

/s/ Centurion ZD CPA Limited
Centurion ZD CPA Limited
Hong Kong, China

February 10, 2017



PRIME GLOBAL CAPITAL GROUP INCORPORATED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amount expressed in United States Dollars (“US$”), except for number of shares)

As of October 31,
2016 2015
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 685,876 $ 836,794
Time deposits - 1,661,692
Marketable securities, available-for-sale 279,042 334,452
Rental concession 26,231 25,605
Accounts receivable, net 137,207 112,439
Deposits and other receivables 27,763 50,172
Deferred tax assets 13,694 -
Total current assets 1,169,813 3,021,154
Rental concession, non-current 710,425 719,080
Deferred development costs 76,159 38,566
Construction in progress 270,683 263,222
Property, plant and equipment, net 43,584,772 43,044,561
TOTAL ASSETS $ 45811,852  $ 47,086,583
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 15778  $ 14
Amount due to a related party 108,149 180,316
Rental deposits from tenants 408,329 405,570
Income tax payable 985,353 841,722
Short-term bank borrowings 3,576,964 3,491,620
Current portion of long-term bank loans 844,436 768,529
Current portion of obligation under finance lease 2,147 2,096
Deferred tax liabilities, current 6,558 6,401
Accrued liabilities and other payables 333,606 369,160
Total current liabilities 6,281,320 6,065,428
Long-term liabilities:
Long-term bank loans 9,550,320 10,111,418
Rental deposits from tenants - 16,294
Amount due to a director 1,279,196 2,071,183
Deferred tax liabilities 180,363 182,461
Obligation under finance lease 1,067 3,137
Total liabilities 17,292,266 18,449,921
Commitments and contingencies
Total equity:
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and
outstanding - -
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 1,000,000,000 shares authorized; 512,682,393 shares
issued and outstanding 512,683 512,683
Additional paid-in capital 41,934,476 41,934,476
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (10,918,664) (11,715,152)
Accumulated deficit (2,846,486) (1,980,135)
Total stockholders’ equity 28,682,009 28,751,872
Non-controlling interests (162,423) (115,210)
Total equity 28,519,586 28,636,662
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 45,811,852 $ 47,086,583

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



PRIME GLOBAL CAPITAL GROUP INCORPORATED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(Amount expressed in United States Dollars (“US$”), except for number of shares)

Revenues, net:
Plantation business
Rental income
Total revenues, net

Cost of revenues
Gross profit

Operating expenses:
General and administrative

Income from operations
Other income (expense):
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Interest income
Interest expense
Other income
Impairment loss on available-for-sale securities
Loss before income taxes
Income tax expense

NET LOSS

Net loss attributable to non-controlling interests

Net loss attributable to the Company

Other comprehensive income (loss):

- Unrealized holding loss on available-for-sale securities

- Impairment loss on available-for-sale securities
- Foreign exchange adjustment

COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Net loss per share — Basic and diluted:

Weighted average common stock outstanding — Basic and diluted

* Less than $0.01 per share

Years ended October 31,

2016 2015
108516 $ 156,642
1,538,211 1,763,101
1,646,727 1,919,743
(630,418) (739,867)
1,016,309 1,179,876
(626,395) (1,046,125)
389,914 133,751
- 1,106

47,813 57,008
(977,097) (1,218,523)
16,983 70,165
(135,597) -
(657,984) (956,493)
(253,538) (636,941)
(911522) $ (1,593,434)
45171 38,934
(866,351) $ (1,554,550)
(60,590) (106,783)
135,597 -
721,481 (10,334,773)
(69,863) $  (11,996,056)
000 $ *0.00
512,682,393 512,682,393

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



PRIME GLOBAL CAPITAL GROUP INCORPORATED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amount expressed in United States Dollars (“USS$”))

Years ended October 31,

2016 2015
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (911,522) $ (1,593,434)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Impairment loss on available-for-sale securities 135,597 -
Bad debt written off - 25,850
Depreciation 528,921 590,757
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment - (1,106)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (22,403) 6,080
Rental concession 26,688 29,315
Deposits and other receivables 24,048 (25,161)
Accounts payable 16,038 (6,892)
Rental deposits from tenants (24,262) (118,894)
Income tax payable 125,202 296,773
Accrued liabilities and other payables (39,778) 61,986
Deferred tax assets (13,694) -
Deferred tax liabilities (6,911) 216,222
Net cash used in operating activities (162,076) (518,504)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Plantation development costs (37,289) (44,153)
Payment on construction in progress (1,045) (301,354)
Decrease (increase) in time deposits 1,731,975 (1,902,417)
Purchase of marketable securities - (465,606)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (8,092) (17,291)
Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment — 12,223
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 1,685,549 (2,718,598)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment to a director (924,780) (1,051,548)
Repayments on long-term bank loans (764,215) (10,920,071)
Proceeds from long-term bank loans - 10,494,084
Payments on finance lease (2,184) (2,399)
Proceeds from revolving line of credit — 3,997,442
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (1,691,179) 2,517,508
Foreign currency translation adjustment 16,788 (228,946)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (150,918) (948,540)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 836,794 1,785,334
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 685,876 $ 836,794
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid for income tax $ 89,769 $ 127,027
Cash paid for interest $ 981,776  $ 1,152,169

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



PRIME GLOBAL CAPITAL GROUP INCORPORATED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(Amount expressed in United States Dollars (“US$”), except for number of shares)

Balance as of October 31, 2014

Net loss for the year

Unrealized loss on available-for-sale
securities

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Balance as of October 31, 2015

Net loss for the year

Unrealized loss on available-for-sale
securities

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
securities

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Balance as of October 31, 2016

Accumulated

Common stock Additional other Total PGCG Non- Total
No. of paid-in income/ Accumulated stockholders’ controlling stockholders’
Shares Amount capital (loss) deficit equity interests equity
512,682,393 $ 512,683 $41,934,476 $ (1,273,596) $ (425,635) $ 40,747,928 $ (106,052) $ 40,641,876
- - - —  (1,554,500)  (1,554,500)  (38,934) (1,593,434)
- - - (106,783) - (106,783) - (106,783)
— — — (10,334,773) - (10,334,773) 29,776  (10,304,997)

$(11,715,152) $ (1,980,135) $ 28,751,872 $ (115210) $ 28,636,662

- - - (866,351) (866,351)  (45171)  (911,522)
- - - (60,590) - (60,590) - (60,590)
- - - 135,597 - 135,597 - 135,597
- - _ 721,481 - 721,481 (2,042) 719,439

512,682,393 $ 512,683 $41,934,476 $(10,918,664) $ (2,846,486) $ 28,682,009 $ (162,423) $ 28,519,586

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



PRIME GLOBAL CAPITAL GROUP INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount expressed in United States Dollars (“US$”), except for number of shares or stated otherwise)

1. ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS BACKGROUND

Prime Global Capital Group Incorporated (formerly Home Touch Holding Company) (“PGCG” or “the Company’’) was incorporated
in the State of Nevada on January 26, 2009. On January 25, 2011, the Company changed its name to Prime Global Capital Group
Incorporated.

Currently, the Company, through its subsidiaries, is principally engaged in the operation of a durian plantation, leasing and
development of the operation of oil palm and durian plantation, commercial and residential real estate properties in Malaysia.

Corporate history

On December 6, 2010, the Company acquired Union Hub Technology Sdn. Bhd. (“UHT”), a company incorporated under the laws
of Malaysia, through a share exchange transaction, or the Share Exchange. Pursuant to the Share Exchange, the Company acquired
from the UHT shareholders all of the issued and outstanding shares of UHT in exchange for the issuance of 16,500,000 shares of its
common stock. As a result of the Share Exchange, UHT became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Concurrently, on December 6, 2010, the Company entered into and executed an agreement to sell its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Home Touch Limited (a corporation organized under the laws of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region), to the former
founders and directors for $20,000. Upon the completion of this sale, Mr. Ng and Ms. Yau, the former founders and executive
officers, resigned from their positions on the board of directors.

The share exchange transaction has been accounted for as a reverse acquisition and recapitalization of the Company whereby UHT
is deemed to be the accounting acquirer (legal acquiree) and the Company to be the accounting acquiree (legal acquirer).

On January 25, 2011, the Company changed its fiscal year from March 31 to October 31 and increased its authorized capital to
1,000,000,000 shares of common stock and 100,000,000 shares of preferred stock.

On January 20, 2014, the Company through PGCG Assets sold and issued to an unaffiliated third party 200,000 shares of its Common
Stock at a price of RM 100 per share, for aggregate consideration of RM 20,000,000, or approximately US$ 6,084,760. PGCG
Assets received net proceeds of approximately RM 20,000,000, or approximately US$ 6,084,760 from the sale of its securities and
used the net proceeds for general corporate purposes, including repayment of the loan made by UHT. Upon the consummation of
the foregoing transactions, 90% of the issued and outstanding securities of PGCG Assets will be owned by UHT and 10% by such
unaffiliated third party. Each sale and issuance was made pursuant to the terms of a subscription agreement containing terms and
conditions that are normal and customary for a transaction of this type. In October 2014, PGCG Assets issued 48,000,000 shares of
its common stock by capitalization of its share premium account.

On October 31, 2014, the Company through Virtual Setup Sdn. Bhd., its affiliate, sold and issued to Denvoursuisse Sdn. Bhd.
200,000 shares of its Common Stock at a price of RM 10 per share, for aggregate consideration of RM 2,000,000, or approximately
US$ 611,731. PGCG Assets received net proceeds of approximately RM 2,000,000, from the sale of its securities and used the net
proceeds for general corporate purposes, including repayment of the loan made by UHT. Upon the consummation of the foregoing
transactions, 95% of the issued and outstanding securities of VSSB will be owned by PGCG Plantation and 5% by Denvoursuisse
Sdn. Bhd., which also owns 10% of the issued and outstanding securities of PGCG Assets. The sale and issuance was made pursuant
to the terms of a subscription agreement containing terms and conditions that are normal and customary for a transaction of this type.

In December 2014, the Company discontinued the software business and concentrated its resource to develop the real estate business.

Summary of the Company’s subsidiaries

Name of entities Place of Date of Issued capital Nature of business
incorporation incorporation
1. Union Hub Technology Sdn. Malaysia February 22, 100,000,000 issued Provision corporate service
Bhd. (“UHT”) 2008 shares of ordinary to group companies

shares of MYR 1 each

2. Power Green Investments British Virgin ~ January 13, 1 issued share of US$1 Inactive operation
Limited (“PGIL”) Islands 2011 each



3. PGCG Properties Investment British Virgin  September 1, 1 issued share of US$1 Inactive operation

Limited (“PPIL”) Islands 2011 each
4.  Virtual Setup Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia July 19, 2010 4,000,000 issued Operation of oil palm and
(“VSSB”) shares of ordinary durian plantation
shares of MYR 1 each
5.  PGCG Assets Holdings Sdn. Malaysia March 21, 2012 50,000,000 issued Investment in land &
Bhd. (“PGCG Assets™) shares of ordinary buildings
shares of MYR 1 each
6. PGCG Development Sdn. Bhd.  Malaysia March 21, 2012 250,000 issued shares  Inactive operation
(“PGCG Development™) of ordinary shares of
MYR 1 each
7. PGCG Plantations Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia October 4, 2011 2 issued shares of Holding company of VSSB
(“PGCG Plantation™) ordinary shares of
MYR 1 each
8. Max Trend International Limited Hong Kong August 19, 2010 2 issued shares of Holding company of
(“Max Trend”) ordinary shares of HK$ SMTG
1 each
9. Shenzhen Max Trend Green The People’s July 7, 2011 RMB 1,000,000 De-registered in August
Energy Company Limited (Max  Republic of China 2015
Trend WOFE) (“SMTG”) (“PRC™),
Shenzhen
10. Dunford Corporation Sdn. Bhd Malaysia October 4, 1990 242,000 issued shares  Property holding land
of ordinary shares of
MYR 1 each
11. Impiana Maksima Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia March 15, 2013 2 issued shares of Property development
ordinary shares of
MYR 1 each
12. PGCG Constructions Sdn. Bhd.  Malaysia April 16, 2013 2 issued shares of Construction of properties
ordinary shares of
MYR 1 each
13. Fiesta Senada Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia November 28, 2 issued shares of Inactive operation
2012 ordinary shares of
MYR 1 each
14. Havana Avenue Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia April 4,2014 2 issued shares of Inactive operation
ordinary shares of
MYR 1 each

PGCG and its subsidiaries are hereinafter referred to as (the “Company”).
2. GOING CONCERN UNCERTAINTY

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the going concern basis of accounting, which
contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business.

For the year ended October 31, 2016, the Company reported a net loss of $911,522 and working capital deficit of $5,111,507 as of
October 31, 2016. The Company had accumulated deficit of $2,846,486 as of October 31, 2016 from recurring losses and significant
short-term debt obligations maturing in less than one year (notes 7 and 8). These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.



The continuation of the Company as a going concern is dependent upon improving the profitability and the continuing financial
support from its stockholders or other capital sources. Management believes that the continuing financial support from the existing
shareholders or external debt financing will provide the additional cash to meet the Company’s obligations as they become due.

These consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the recoverability
and classification of assets and liabilities that may result in the Company not being able to continue as a going concern.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

o Basis of presentation

These accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America (“US GAAP”).

. Use of estimates

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities in the balance sheets and revenues and expenses during the years reported. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

o Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of PGCG and its subsidiaries. All significant inter-company balances and
transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries have been eliminated upon consolidation.

o Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash on hand, demand deposits placed with banks or other financial institutions and all highly
liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less as of the purchase date of such investments.

As of October 31,
2016 2015

Bank balances held by financial institutions located in:
Malaysia $ 684,974 $ 760,787
The PRC - 74,595
684,974 835,382
Cash on hand in Malaysia 902 1,412
$ 685,876 $ 836,794

As of October 31, 2016 and 2015, the restricted amount of cash held by our PRC subsidiary in China was $nil and $74,595,
respectively.

. Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. The Company extends unsecured credit to its
customers in the ordinary course of business but mitigates the associated risks by performing credit checks and actively pursuing
past due accounts. An allowance for doubtful accounts is established and determined based on managements’ assessment of known
requirements, aging of receivables, payment history, the customer’s current credit worthiness and the economic environment. The
Company considers the allowance for doubtful accounts for any estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers to make
required payments. For the receivables that are past due or not being paid according to payment terms, the appropriate actions are
taken to exhaust all means of collection, including seeking legal resolution in a court of law. Account balances are charged off against
the allowance after all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote. The Company
does not have any off-balance-sheet credit exposure related to its customers.

Based upon the aforementioned criteria, the Company wrote off $nil and $25,850 accounts receivable on uncollectible rental
receivable for the years ended October 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

. Available-for-sale marketable securities

Available-for-sale marketable securities are reported at fair value using the market approach based on the quoted prices in active
markets at the reporting date. The Company classifies the valuation techniques that use these inputs as Level 1 of fair value



measurements. Any unrealized losses that are deemed other-than-temporary are included in current period earnings and removed
from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

Realized gains and losses on marketable securities are included in current period earnings. For purposes of computing realized gains
and losses, the cost basis of each investment sold is generally based on the weighted average cost method.

The Company regularly evaluates whether the decline in fair value of available-for-sale securities is other-than-temporary and
objective evidence of impairment could include:

e The severity and duration of the fair value decline;
o Deterioration in the financial condition of the issuer; and
o Evaluation of the factors that could cause individual securities to have an other-than-temporary impairment.

During the year ended October 31, 2016, $135,597 of losses previously classified in other comprehensive losses were reclassified
into earnings to recognize an other-than-temporary decline in fair value. No such other-than-temporary decline in fair value was
recognized during the year ended October 31, 2015.

During the years ended October 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company invested in equity securities listed on Bursa Malaysia with a total
cost of $265,606 and escrow funds (which invested in equity securities listed in the U.S.) with a total cost of $200,000. The Company
entered into an escrow agreement with Peijin Wu Hoppe (“Hoppe”), the Company’s former director, to set up an escrow fund up to
$500,000 as a reserve to indemnify Hoppe from any claim of liability until July 29, 2022, the seventh year anniversary of the
termination of Director Retainer Agreement, or any mutual agreement with the Company and Hoppe. The unrealized loss
representing the change in fair value of $60,590 and $106,783 was charged against accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
for the years ended October 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

o Deferred development costs

Deferred development costs consist of replanting costs of durian such as soil amendments, cultivation, fertilization and purchase
costs of sapling. Costs related to durian development projects on the Company's plantation land, are capitalized during the sapling,
developing and planting durian fruit bunches and when the harvests are substantially available for commercial sale. Deferred
development costs will then commence to be amortized as components of plantation costs and expenses.

o Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the following expected useful lives from the date on which they become
fully operational:

Cateqgories Location of properties Expected useful life
Freehold plantation land Oil palm and durian plantation in Malaysia Indefinite, as per land titles
Leasehold land under development Leasehold land in Puncak Alam, Malaysia Remaining lease life of 88
years, as per land titles
Freehold land under development Freehold land in Sungai Long, Cheras, Selangor, Indefinite, as per land titles
Malaysia
Freehold land and land improvement for Land portion of 15 story building “Menara CMY” in Indefinite, as per property titles
rental purpose Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Building structure and improvements Building structure of commercial buildings in Kuala 33 years

Lumpur, Malaysia, including: 12 story building
“Megan Avenue” and 15 story building “Menara
CcMY”
Office furniture and equipment 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Expenditure for maintenance and repairs is expensed as incurred. The gain or loss on the disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant assets and is recognized in the statement of
operations.

Long-lived assets primarily include freehold plantation land, leasehold land held for development, freehold land and land
improvement for rental purpose and building structure and improvements. In accordance with the provision of ASC Topic 360,
“Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, the Company generally conducts its annual impairment evaluation to its long-lived
assets, usually in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, or more frequently if indicators of impairment exist, such as a significant
sustained change in the business climate. The recoverability of long-lived assets is measured at the lowest level group. If the total of



the expected undiscounted future net cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset, a loss is recognized for the difference
between the fair value and carrying amount of the asset. There has been no impairment charge for the years presented.

The Company has separately identified the portion of freehold land and building structure, in which freehold land is not subject to
amortization and buildings are to be amortized over 33 years on a straight-line method.

Policy for Capitalizing Development Cost

The cost of buildings and improvements includes the purchase price of property, legal fees and other acquisition costs. Costs directly
related to planning, developing, initial leasing and constructing a property are capitalized and classified as Real Estate in the
consolidated balance sheets. Capitalized development costs include interest, and other direct project costs incurred during the period
of development. As of October 31, 2016 and 2015, there was no such capitalized interest.

A variety of costs are incurred in the acquisition, development and leasing of properties. After determination is made to capitalize a
cost, it is allocated to the specific component of a project that is benefited. Determination of when a development project is
substantially complete and capitalization must cease involves a degree of judgment. The Company adopts the capitalization policy
on development properties, which is guided by ASC Topic 835-20 “ Interest — Capitalization of Interest ” and ASC Topic 970 “
Real Estate - General ”. The costs of land and buildings under development include specifically identifiable costs. The capitalized
costs include pre-construction costs essential to the development of the property, development costs, construction costs, interest
costs, salaries and related costs and other costs incurred during the period of development. The Company considers a construction
project as substantially completed and held available for occupancy upon the receipt of certificates of occupancy, but no later than
one year from cessation of major construction activity. The Company ceases capitalization on the portion (1) substantially completed
and (2) occupied or held available for occupancy, and the Company capitalizes only those costs associated with the portion under
construction.

The Company capitalizes leasing costs which include commissions paid to outside brokers, legal costs incurred to negotiate and
document a lease agreement and any internal costs that may be applicable. The Company allocates these costs to individual tenant
leases and amortizes them over the related lease term.

. Finance leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership to the lessee, other than legal title, are accounted for as
finance leases. Substantially all of the risks or benefits of ownership are deemed to have been transferred if any one of the four
criteria is met: (i) transfer of ownership to the lessee at the end of the lease term, (ii) the lease containing a bargain purchase option,
(iii) the lease term exceeding 75% of the estimated economic life of the leased asset, (iv) the present value of the minimum lease
payments exceeding 90% of the fair value. At the inception of a finance lease, the Company as the lessee records an asset and an
obligation at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments. The leased asset is amortized over the shorter of
the lease term or its estimated useful life if title does not transfer to the Company, while the leased asset is depreciated in accordance
with the Company’s depreciation policy if the title is to eventually transfer to the Company. The periodic rent payments made during
the lease term are allocated between a reduction in the obligation and interest element using the effective interest method in
accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 835-30, “Imputation of Interest”.

o Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes its revenue in accordance with ASC Topic 605, “Revenue Recognition”, upon the delivery of its plantation
products when: (1) title and risk of loss are transferred; (2) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; (3) there are no continuing
obligations to the customer; and (4) the collection of related accounts receivable is reasonably assured. The Company’s sale
arrangements do not contain general rights of return.

(@  Plantation sales

Revenue from the sale of palm oilseed is recognized upon confirmation of the weight of fresh fruit bunches and shipment to the
customer, when there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement, delivery has occurred and risk of loss has passed, the sales price is
fixed or determinable at the date of sale, and collectibility is reasonably assured. For the years ended October 31, 2016 and 2015,
sale of palm oil seed was $14,986 and $137,854.

Pursuant to a 8-K filing on September 23, 2015, in order to concentrate on durian plantation, the Company suspended the direct
operation of oil palm plantation and leased out the oil palm land to a third party, BJ Bentong Trading Company (“BJ”’) under an
operating lease for 30 months from September 21, 2015 to March 20, 2018. Pursuant to this tenancy agreement, the tenant is entitled
to manage the plantation, harvest and sell palm oil fresh fruit bunches and receive all proceeds thereto. Rental income of $93,530
and $18,788 was recognized for the year ended October 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and was included in revenue from plantation
business.



On September 29, 2016, the Company and BJ entered into a letter agreement pursuant to which the parties mutually agreed to
terminate the Tenancy Agreement upon the following conditions:

1. BJ’s deposit of RM70,000 shall be forfeited by the Company;

2. All staff, laborers, machinery and tools shall be removed from the premises and the premises returned to the Company no
later than September 30, 2016; and

3. BJshall indemnify the Company for a period of six (6) months after the termination of the Tenancy Agreement against all
and any damages, loss, expenses or other cost on the property and or the oil palm trees regardless of whether such damage
arose as a result of the act, omission or negligence of BJ or its agents and representatives.

During the year ended October 31, 2016, the Company recognized other income of $16,983 from forfeiture of BJ’s deposit.

The Company is currently directly managing its oil palm and durian plantation.

(b) Rental income

The Company generally leases the units under operating leases with terms of two years or less. For the years ended October 31, 2016
and 2015, we have recorded $1,538,211 and $1,763,101, respectively, in lease revenue, based upon its annual rental over the life of
the lease under operating lease, using the straight-line method in accordance with ASC Topic 970-605, “Real Estate — General —

Revenue Recognition” (“ASC Topic 970-605”).

As of October 31, 2016, the commercial buildings for lease are as follows:

Name of Commercial building Number of units Footage area

(by floor) (square feet) Vacancy percentage
Megan Avenue 12 19,987 67%
Menara CMY 15 91,848 0%

The Company expects to record approximately $1.2 million in annual lease revenue under the operating lease arrangements in the
next twelve months, through October 31, 2017.

. Rental concession

The Company leases store location and office spaces to the tenants under operating lease arrangements. The Company receives rental
income from the real estates it owns for a stated period of times. Rental income is recognized over the life of the operating lease
agreement as it is earned in the period under ASC Topic 970-605. The typical leases contain initial terms of one to two years with
renewal options and do not contain escalating rent amounts. Under the lease agreement of Menara CMY, the initial term of lease is
one year. Provided that there are no existing breaches by the tenant, an irrecoverable annual renewal option is granted for up to
twenty-nine years, with a maximum aggregate term of thirty years. Six-months’ rent-free period under the operating lease agreement
is treated as long-term rent concession, which is being amortized as an offset to revenues collected over the term of the underlying
lease of 30 years on a straight-line basis.

As of October 31,
2016 2015
Rental concession:
Current portion $ 26,231 $ 25,605
Non-current portion 710,425 719,080
Total $ 736,656 $ 744,685

The estimated amortization on long-term rent concession in the next five years and thereafter is as follows:

Period ending October 31:

2017 $ 26,231
2018 26,231
2019 26,231
2020 26,231
2021 26,231

Thereafter 605,501




Total $ 736,656

As of October 31, 2016, the minimum future rental receivables on the commercial properties to be collectible in the next five years
and thereafter are as follows:

Period ending October 31:

2017 $ 1,128,532
2018 1,118,398
2019 1,118,398
2020 1,118,398
2021 1,118,398
Thereafter 24,697,944
Total $ 30,300,068

The Company also records operating costs directly attributable to the leasing properties, such as real estate taxes, depreciation of the
leased properties and maintenance fees, which are charged to expense when incurred.

. Cost of revenues

Cost of revenue on plantation sales includes material supplies, subcontracting costs and transportation costs incurred for planting,
fertilizing and harvesting the oil palm tree. Shipping and handling costs associated with the distribution of fresh fruit bunches to the
customers are also included in cost of revenues.

Cost related to real estate business shown on the accompanying statements of operations include costs associated with land tax, on-
site and property management personnel, repairs and maintenance, property insurance, marketing, landscaping and other on-site and
related administrative costs. Utility expenses are paid directly by tenants.

o Comprehensive income

ASC Topic 220, “Comprehensive Income” establishes standards for reporting and display of comprehensive income, its components
and accumulated balances. Comprehensive income as defined includes all changes in equity during a period from non-owner sources.
Accumulated other comprehensive income, as presented in the accompanying statements of stockholders’ equity consists of changes
in unrealized gains and losses on foreign currency translation and cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
investments held at the balance sheet date. This comprehensive income is not included in the computation of income tax expense or
benefit.

o Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests represent the equity interest in the capital contributions, income and loss of less than wholly-owned and
consolidated entities that is not attributable to the Company.

. Income taxes

Income taxes are determined in accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 740, “Income Taxes” (“ASC Topic 740”). Under this
method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using enacted income tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. Any effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in
income in the period that includes the enactment date.

ASC 740 prescribes a comprehensive model for how companies should recognize, measure, present, and disclose in their financial
statements uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return. Under ASC 740, tax positions must initially be
recognized in the financial statements when it is more likely than not the position will be sustained upon examination by the tax
authorities. Such tax positions must initially and subsequently be measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that has a greater
than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the tax authority assuming full knowledge of the position and
relevant facts.

The Company conducts major businesses in Malaysia and is subject to tax in its own jurisdiction. As a result of its business activities,
the Company will file separate tax returns that are subject to examination by the local and foreign tax authorities.



o Foreign currencies translation

Transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency are translated into the functional currency using the applicable exchange rates at the balance sheet dates. The resulting
exchange differences are recorded in the statement of operations.

The functional currency of the Company is the United States Dollars (“US$”) and the accompanying financial statements have been
expressed in US$, which is the reporting currency. In addition, the Company maintains its books and record in a local currency,
Malaysian Ringgit (“MYR” or “RM”), Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) and Renminbi Yuan (“RMB”), which is functional currency as
being the primary currency of the economic environment in which the entity operates.

In general, for consolidation purposes, assets and liabilities of its subsidiaries whose functional currency is not US$ are translated
into US$, in accordance with ASC Topic 830-30, “Translation of Financial Statement”, using the exchange rate on the balance sheet
date. Revenues and expenses are translated at average rates prevailing during the period. The gains and losses resulting from
translation of financial statements of foreign subsidiary are recorded as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive
income.

Translation of amounts from the local currency of the Company into US$1 has been made at the following exchange rates for the
respective years:

As of and for the year ended October

31,
2016 2015
Year-end RMB : US$1 exchange rate 6.7732 6.3185
Yearly average RMB : US$1 exchange rate 6.5628 6.1721
Year-end HK$ : US$1 exchange rate 7.7548 7.7502
Yearly average HK$ : US$1 exchange rate 7.7606 7.7528
Year-end MYR : US$1 exchange rate 4.1935 4.2960
Yearly average MYR : US$1 exchange rate 4.1217 3.7524

o Retirement plan costs

Contributions to retirement schemes (which are defined contribution plans) are charged to general and administrative expenses in
the statements of operation and comprehensive loss as and when the related employee service is provided.

o Related parties

Parties, which can be a corporation or individual, are considered to be related if the Company has the ability, directly or indirectly,
to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
Companies are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common significant influence.

o Segment reporting

ASC Topic 280, “Segment Reporting” establishes standards for reporting information about operating segments on a basis consistent
with the Company’s internal organization structure as well as information about geographical areas, business segments and major
customers in financial statements. During the years ended October 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company operates in two reportable
operating segments in Malaysia.

. Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments (excluding obligation under finance lease, long-term bank loans and
available-for-sale marketable securities): cash and cash equivalents, time deposits, accounts receivable, deposits and other
receivables, short-term bank borrowings, amount due to a related party and other payables approximate at their fair values because
of the short-term nature of these financial instruments.

Management believes based on the current market prices or interest rates for similar debt instruments, the fair value of its obligation
under finance lease and long-term bank loans approximates the carrying amount.

The Company also follows the guidance of the ASC Topic 820-10, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures” ("ASC 820-10"),
with respect to financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value. ASC 820-10 establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy
that prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows:



e Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets;

e Level 2 : Inputs, other than the quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 : Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which require the reporting entity to develop its
own assumptions

The following table summarizes information on the fair value measurement of the Company’s financial assets as of October 31,
2016 and 2015, measured at fair value, grouped by the categories described above:

Significant
Quoted prices other Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
As of October 31, 2016
Marketable securities, available-for-sale $ 279,042 - -
As of October 31, 2015
Marketable securities, available-for-sale $ 334452 3% - $ -

As of October 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company did not have any nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are recognized or disclosed
at fair value in the financial statements, at least annually, on a recurring basis, nor did the Company have any assets or liabilities
measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis.

. Recent accounting pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which requires an entity to recognize the
amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers. ASU 2014-09 will
replace most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP when it becomes effective. In July 2015, the FASB approved a
one-year deferral of the effective date of the new revenue recognition standard. The amendments in ASU 2014-09 are effective for
public companies for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The
standard permits the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU
2016-08, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), Principal versus Agent Considerations (Reporting Revenue versus
Net). In April 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-10, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), Identifying Performance
Obligations and Licensing. In May 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-11, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) and
Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815) - Rescission of SEC Guidance Because of ASU 2014-09 and 2014-16, and ASU 2016-12,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) - Narrow Scope Improvements and Practical Expedients. These ASUs clarify
the implementation guidance on a few narrow areas and adds some practical expedients to the guidance Topic 606. The Company is
evaluating the effect the ASUs will have on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. The Company has not yet
selected a transition method nor has it determined the effect of these standards on its ongoing financial reporting.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, "Presentation of Financial Statements-Going concern (Subtopic 205-40) which
provides guidance to an organization’s management, with principles and definitions that are intended to reduce diversity in the timing
and content of disclosures that are commonly provided by organizations today in the financial statement footnotes. This guidance in
ASU 2014-15 is effective for annual periods ending after December 15, 2016, and interim periods within annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2016. Early application is permitted for annual or interim reporting periods for which the financial state ments
have not previously been issued. The Company does not expect that the adoption will have a material impact on its consolidated
financial statements.

In November 2014, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-16, Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Determining
Whether the Host Contract in a Hybrid Financial Instrument Issued in the Form of a Share Is More Akin to Debt or to Equity (a
consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force). The amendments permit the use of the Fed Funds Effective Swap Rate (also
referred to as the Overnight Index Swap Rate, or OIS) as a benchmark interest rate for hedge accounting purposes. Public business
entities are required to implement the new requirements in fiscal years (and interim periods within those fiscal years) beginning after
December 15, 2015. The Company does not expect the adoption of ASU 2014-16 to have a material impact on its consolidated
financial statements.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02 “Consolidation (Topic 810): Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis.” ASU
2015-02 changes the analysis that a reporting entity must perform to determine whether it should consolidate certain types of legal
entities. It is effective for annual reporting periods, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2015. Early



adoption is permitted, including adoption in an interim period. The Company is currently in the process of evaluating the impact of
the adoption of ASU 2015-02 on its consolidated financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03 “Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs”, which changes the presentation
of debt issuance costs in the financial statements. ASU 2015-03 requires an entity to present such costs in the balance sheet as a
direct deduction from the related debt liability rather than as an asset. Amortization of the costs will continue to be reported as
interest expense. The guidance is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, with early adoption
permitted. The guidance will be applied retrospectively to each period presented. The adoption of this standard update is not expected
to have any impact on the Company's financial statements.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-11, Inventory, which requires an entity to measure inventory within the scope at the lower
of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably
predictable costs of completion, disposal, and transportation. The effective date for the standard is for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2016. Early adoption is permitted. The Company does not expect the adoption of ASU 2015-11 to have a material
impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In September 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-16, Business Combinations (Topic 805): Simplifying the Accounting for
Measurement-Period Adjustments. To simplify the accounting for adjustments made to provisional amounts recognized in a business
combination, the amendments eliminate the requirement to retrospectively account for those adjustments. For public business
entities, the amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, including interim periods within those
fiscal years. The amendments should be applied prospectively to adjustments to provisional amounts that occur after the effective
date with earlier application permitted for financial statements that have not been issued. The Company does not expect the adoption
of ASU 2015-16 to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, “Income Taxes (Topic 740): Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes”.
To simplify the presentation of deferred income taxes, the amendments in this update require that deferred income tax liabilities and
assets be classified as noncurrent in a classified statement of financial position. The amendments in ASU 2015-17 are effective for
public business entities for financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods
within those annual periods. The amendments may be applied prospectively to all deferred tax liabilities and assets or retrospectively
to all periods presented. The Company does not expect that the adoption will have a material impact on its consolidated financial
statements.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, “Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement
of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.” The amendments in this update require all equity investments to be measured at fair
value with changes in the fair value recognized through net income (other than those accounted for under equity method of
accounting or those that result in consolidation of the investee). The amendments in this update also require an entity to present
separately in other comprehensive income the portion of the total change in the fair value of a liability resulting from a change in the
instrument-specific credit risk when the entity has elected to measure the liability at fair value in accordance with the fair value
option for financial instruments. The amendments in ASU 2016-01 are effective for public companies for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company does not expect that the adoption will
have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The new standard establishes a right-of-use (“ROU”)
model that requires a lessee to record a ROU asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet for all leases with terms longer than 12
months. Leases will be classified as either finance or operating, with classification affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the
income statement. The new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within
those fiscal years. A modified retrospective transition approach is required for lessees for capital and operating leases existing at, or
entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the financial statements, with certain practical
expedients available. The Company does not expect that the adoption will have a material impact on its consolidated financial
statements.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-07, Simplifying the Transition to the Equity Method of Accounting, which
eliminates the requirement to apply the equity method of accounting retrospectively when a reporting entity obtains significant
influence over a previously held investment. The amendments in ASU 2016-07 are effective for public companies for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2016 including interim periods therein. Early adoption is permitted. The new standard should be
applied prospectively for investments that qualify for the equity method of accounting after the effective date. The Company does
not expect that the adoption will have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-09, Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting, which includes
amendments to accounting for income taxes at settlement, forfeitures, and net settlements to cover withholding taxes. The
amendments in ASU 2016-09 are effective for public companies for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim
periods within those annual periods. Early adoption is permitted but requires all elements of the amendments to be adopted at once



rather than individually. The Company is evaluating the effect that ASU No. 2016-09 will have on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements and related disclosures.

In June 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2016-13, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326),
which requires entities to measure all expected credit losses for financial assets held at the reporting date based on historical
experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts. This replaces the existing incurred loss model and is
applicable to the measurement of credit losses on financial assets measured at amortized cost. This guidance is effective for fiscal
years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2019. Early application will be permitted for all
entities for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2018. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact that the standard will have on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments. ASU 2016-15
clarifies the presentation and classification of certain cash receipts and cash payments in the statement of cash flows. This ASU is
effective for public business entities for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2017.
Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently assessing the potential impact of ASU 2016-15 on its financial statements
and related disclosures.

In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-16—Income Taxes (Topic 740): Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets Other Than
Inventory. This ASU improves the accounting for the income tax consequences of intra-entity transfers of assets other than inventory.
This ASU is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is
permitted. The Company does not anticipate that the adoption of this ASU to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial
statements.

In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-17, Consolidation (Topic 810): Interests Held through Related Parties That Are
Under Common Control. The amendments in this ASU change how a reporting entity that is the single decision maker of a variable
interest entity should treat indirect interests in the entity held through related parties that are under common control with the reporting
entity when determining whether it is the primary beneficiary of that variable interest entity. The ASU is effective for fiscal years
and interim periods within those years beginning after December 15, 2016. The Company does not expect the adoption of this ASU
to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In November 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-18 (ASU 2016-18), Statement of Cash Flows: Restricted
Cash. This ASU provides guidance on the classification of restricted cash in the statement of cash flows. The amendments in this
ASU are effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is permitted. The amendments
in the ASU should be adopted on a retrospective basis. The Company does not expect that adoption of this ASU to have a material
effect on its consolidated financial statements.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-setting bodies that do not require
adoption until a future date are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements upon
adoption.

4, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the following:

As of October 31,

2016 2015
Freehold plantation land $ 7,845,805 $ 7,845,805
Leasehold land under development 4,276,764 4,276,764
Freehold land under development 18,091,173 18,091,173
Freehold land and land improvement for rental purpose commercial building 15,191,123 15,191,123
Building structure and improvements 15,857,410 15,857,410
Office furniture, fixture and equipment 125,959 125,631
Motor vehicles 173,811 166,047
Foreign translation difference (16,009,829) (17,096,349)

45,552,216 44,457,604
Less: accumulated depreciation (2,457,773) (1,928,852)
Less: foreign translation difference 490,329 515,809
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 43,584,772 % 43,044,561

Depreciation expense for the years ended October 31, 2016 and 2015 amounted to $528,921 and $590,757, respectively.



As of October 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company has one motor vehicle under finance lease with a carrying value of $3,378 and
$5,625, respectively.

Both commercial buildings in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia are pledged against the bank loans (notes 7 and 8).

In April 2015, the Company’s development order regarding the development 0f21.8921 hectares (54.10 acres) leasehold land located
in Puncak Alam, Malaysia was approved by the Kuala Selangor District Council. The approved order allows the Company to proceed
with its plans to construct its Shah Alam 2 Eco Residential Development project. In November 2015, the Company submitted a
request to convert some of its planned semi-detached and bungalow home parcels into cluster semi-detached homes to improve the
marketability of the Company’s proposed development. On March 4, 2016, the Company received notification from the Kuala
Selangor District Council that its revised Development Order relating to the Puncak Alam land was approved on February 24, 2016.

Pursuant to an 8-K filed on July 1, 2016, PGCG Assets entered into a memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) with Yong Tai
Berhad, a public listed corporation in the main market of Bursa Malaysia Berhad (“YTB”) engaged in the business of commercial
and residential property development, to jointly develop our land (the “Land”) located at Puncak Alam (the “Proposed JV”’). Under
the MOU, the parties agreed to use their best efforts to negotiate exclusively with each other regarding the terms and conditions of
the definitive agreement to jointly develop the Land.

Pursuant to the MOU, the parties agreed that PGCG Assets and Y TB shall be entitled to 20% and 80%, respectively, of the estimated
Gross Development Value of the Proposed JV, or at such percentage of estimated gross development value as may be mutually
agreed upon at a later date between the parties. The gross development value of the Proposed JV is estimated to be RM510 million,
or approximately $122 million. This estimate may be revised accordingly during the negotiation of the terms of the definitive
agreement.

The participation of the parties in the Proposed JV is conditional upon the following conditions precedent being fulfilled on or before
the expiry of 4 months from the date of this MOU with an automatic extension of 2 months from the expiry therefrom or such later
date as agreed between the parties (“Termination Date™):

(i) finalization of the negotiations between the parties and the terms and conditions and execution and
delivery of the definitive agreement, in the form and substance that is satisfactory to the parties;
(i) completion of all viability studies, assessments and due diligences as required by YTB including but not

limited to financial, legal, tax, technical and business due diligences and due diligence on the Proposed
JV, and the parties being satisfied with the results of such viability studies, assessments and due
diligences;

(iii) The parties shall use reasonable efforts to negotiate and enter into the definitive agreement which will
reflect the terms of this MOU and contain such other provisions as are usual and customary in transactions
of this nature including customary representations and warranties, customary conditions to closing,
indemnifications and covenants and the parties are satisfied on the warranties as agreed between the
parties.

If the definitive agreement concerning the Proposed JV is not executed by the Termination Date (or such later date as agreed between
the parties) for whatever reason, then the parties are released from all further obligations and liabilities under the MOU.

YTB is currently conducting its feasibility studies and business and market due diligence. The Company suspended its plans for
obtaining further approvals pending YTB’s determination of whether it elects to proceed with the Proposed JV. In the event YTB
elects not to proceed with the Proposed JV, the Company may also suspend its development efforts until market conditions improve.
As of the approval date of these financial statements, no definitive agreement has been concluded.

During the course of the Company’s strategic review of its operations, the Company assessed the recoverability of the carrying value
of its property, plant and equipment. The impairment charge, if any, represented the excess of carrying amounts of the Company’s
property, plant and equipment over the fair values of the assets. The Company believes that there was no impairment of its property,
plant and equipment for the years ended October 31, 2016 and 2015.

5. AMOUNT DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

As of October 31,
2016 2015
Current portion:
Amount due to a related party, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand,
Mr. Pua Wooi Khang, a former director of UHT $ 108,149 $ 180,316

Non-current portion:



Amount due to a related party, unsecured, interest-free and not expected to be repaid
in the next twelve months
Mr. Weng Kung Wong, the Company’s director $ 1,279,196 $ 2,071,183

6. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES

Accrued liabilities and other payables consist of the following:

As of October 31,
2016 2015
Accrued operating expenses $ 118,670 $ 115,883
Accrued interest expense 54,775 57,957
Potential tax penalty liability (Note 12) 135,000 135,000
Other payable 25,161 60,320
$ 333,606 $ 369,160
7. LONG-TERM BANK LOANS
As of October 31,
2016 2015
Bank loans from financial institutions in Malaysia,
Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad $ 8,213970 $ 8,692,957
RHB Bank Berhad 2,180,786 2,186,990
10,394,756 10,879,947
Less: current portion (844,436) (768,529)
Bank loans, net of current portion $ 9,550,320 $ 10,111,418

15 Story Bank Loan

In December 2012, the Company, through PGCG Assets obtained a loan in the principal amount of RM41,000,000 from Hong Leong
Bank Berhad, a financial institution in Malaysia to finance the acquisition of a fifteen story office building property, which bears
interest at a rate of 1.75% per annum over the lending rate, variable rate quoted by the bank, with 180 monthly installments over a
period of 15 years and will mature on January 31, 2028. The outstanding amount was fully repaid by a new loan of RM40,000,000
refinanced by Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad in December 2014, which bears interest at a rate of 1% per annum over the lending
rate, currently 6.85% per annum, with 120 monthly installments of RM476,898 each (including interests) over a period of 10 years
or until full settlement and will mature in December 2024.

The loan from Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad is secured by the first party charge over 15-story commercial office building
“Menara CMY” in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia, deed of assignment of rental proceeds over the rights and interest to the rental of the
15-story commercial office building and is personally guaranteed by the director and chief executive officer of the Company, Mr.
Weng Kung Wong and a subsidiary of the Company, UHT. The loan is also secured by a debenture incorporating fixed and floating
charge for RM55 million plus interest thereon over the assets of PGCG Assets. The cost of funds was 7.85% per annum for the years
ended October 31, 2016 and 2015.

12 Story Bank Loan

In May 2013, the Company, through PGCG Assets obtained a loan in the aggregate amount of RM9,840,000 from RHB Bank
Berhad, a financial institution in Malaysia to finance the acquisition of a twelve story office building property, which bears interest
at a rate of 1.90% per annum below the lending rate, variable rate quoted by the bank, with 288 monthly installments of RM57,045
each (including interests) over a period of 24 years and will mature in 2037.

The loan is secured by the 12-story commercial office building “Megan Avenue” in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia and is personally
guaranteed by the director and chief executive officer of the Company, Mr. Weng Kung Wong and a director of the Company’s
subsidiary, Mr. Kok Wai Chai and a subsidiary of the Company, UHT. The cost of funds was 4.95% per annum for the year ended
October 31, 2016 (2015: 4.95% per annum).

As of October 31, 2016, the minimum future payments of the aggregate bank loans in the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

Year ending October 31:
2017 $ 844,436



2018 904,907

2019 970,598
2020 1,041,267
2021 1,118,697
Thereafter 5,514,851
Total: $ 10,394,756

8. SHORT-TERM BANK BORROWINGS

The revolving line of credit was granted concurrent with the term loans and pursuant to the same facility letter (see Note 7) by Bank
of China (Malaysia) Berhad to the Company, which provided for up to RM15,000,000 (equal to $3,576,964) for its working capital
purpose. The line bears interest at an annual rate of 1.5% above the bank’s cost of funds on a daily basis. The line is repayable on
demand or at rollover options of 1, 3, 6 & 12 months. The effective interest rate was 5.11% and 5.18% per annum for the year ended
October 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

9. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE

The Company purchased a motor vehicle under a finance lease agreement with the effective interest rate of 3.70% per annum, due
through April 8, 2018, with principal and interest payable monthly. The obligation under the finance lease is as follows:

As of October 31,
2016 2015

Finance lease $ 3808 $ 6,193
Less: interest expense (594) (960)
Net present value of finance lease $ 3214  $ 5,233
Current portion $ 2,147 % 2,096
Non-current portion 1,067 3,137
Total $ 3214  $ 5,233
As of October 31, 2016, the maturities of the finance lease for each of the three years are as follows:
Years ending October 31.:

2017 $ 2,147

2018 1,067

Total $ 3,214

10. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

As of October 31, 2016 and 2015, the number of shares of the Company’s common stock issued and outstanding was 512,682,393
shares. There are no shares of preferred stock issued and outstanding.

11. NET LOSS PER SHARE

Basic net loss per share is computed using the weighted average number of common stock outstanding during the year. Diluted net
loss per share is computed using the weighted average number of common stock outstanding and common stock equivalents during
the year.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to Prime Global Capital Group
Incorporated stockholders:

Years ended October 31,
2016 2015

Basic and diluted net loss attributable to Prime Global Capital Group Incorporated
stockholders:
Numerator:



- Net loss attributable to Prime Global Capital Group Incorporated stockholders $ (866,351) $ (1,554,500)

Denominator:
Weighted average shares outstanding attributable to Prime Global Capital Group
Incorporated stockholders — Basic and diluted 512,682,393 512,682,393

Net loss per share attributable to Prime Global Capital Group Incorporated
stockholders — Basic and diluted (0.00)* $ (0.00)*

* Denotes less than $0.01 per share
12.  INCOME TAXES
The local (United States) and foreign components of loss before income taxes were comprised of the following:

Years ended October 31,

2016 2015

Tax jurisdictions from:

— Local $ (150,884) $ (180,793)
— Foreign, representing:

BVI - -
Malaysia (507,100) (762,746)
Hong Kong - (1,093)
The PRC - (11,861)
Loss before income taxes $ (657,984) $ (956,493)

Provision for income taxes consisted of the following:

Years ended October 31,
2016 2015

Current:

— Local $ - 3 -
— Foreign, representing:

BVI - -
Malaysia 274,142 426,357
Hong Kong - -
The PRC - (2,557)

Deferred:

— Local — _
— Foreign (20,604) 213,141
Income tax expense $ 253538 % 636,941

The effective tax rate in the years presented is the result of the mix of income earned in various tax jurisdictions that apply a broad
range of income tax rates. During the years presented, the Company has a number of subsidiaries that operates in different countries
and is subject to tax in the jurisdictions in which it subsidiaries operate, as follows:

United States of America

PGCG is registered in the State of Nevada and is subject to United States of America tax law. As of October 31, 2016 and 2015, the
operations in the United States of America incurred $646,189 and $467,838, respectively of cumulative net operating losses which
can be carried forward to offset future taxable income. The net operating loss carry forwards begin to expire in 2031, if unutilized.
As of October 31, 2016, the Company has provided for a full valuation allowance of $226,166 (2015: $163,743) against the deferred
tax assets on the expected future tax benefits from the net operating loss carry forwards as the management believes it is not likely
that these assets will not be realized in the future.

The Company has adopted ASC 740-10 “Accounting for Income Taxes” and recorded a liability for an uncertain income tax position,
tax penalties and any imputed interest thereon. The amount, recorded as an obligation in accrued liabilities and other payables, is
$135,000 at October 31, 2016 and 2015 in respect of potential tax penalty of the late filing of IRS return and, if recognized, will
affect the Company’s effective tax rate.



British Virgin Islands

Under the current BVI law, the Company’s subsidiaries are not subject to tax on income. No provision for income tax is required
due to operating loss incurred.

Hong Kong

Max Trend is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax, which is charged at the statutory income rate of 16.5% on its assessable income.
No provision for income tax is required due to operating loss incurred. As of October 31, 2016, the Company has provided for a full
valuation allowance against the deferred tax assets of $1,065 (2015:$1,065) on the expected future tax benefits from the net operating
loss carry forwards as the management believes it is not likely that these assets will be realized in the future.

The PRC

SMTG is subject to the Corporate Income Tax governed by the Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China with a unified
statutory income tax rate of 25%. No provision for income tax is required due to operating loss incurred during the years ended
October 31, 2016 and 2015. A reconciliation of loss before income taxes to the effective tax rate as follows:

Years ended October 31,

2016 2015
Loss before income taxes $ - $ (11,861)
Statutory income tax rate 25% 25%
Income tax at statutory tax rate - (2,965)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses - -
Over-provision in prior years - (2,557)
Net operating loss — 2,965
Income tax credit $ - $ (2,557)

Malaysia

All of the Company’s subsidiaries operating in Malaysia are subject to the Malaysia Corporate Tax Laws at a progressive income
tax rate of 19% (2015: 20%) (for Company with paid up capital not more than RM2.5 million and on the first RM 500,000 income)
and 24% (2015: 25%) (on all income for Company with paid up capital more than RM2.5 million and on the remaining balance of
income after the first RM500,000 income charged at 20% for Company with paid up capital not more than RM2.5 million) on the
assessable income for its tax year. Any unutilized losses can be carried forward indefinitely to be utilized against income from any
business source. As of October 31, 2016, the Company has provided for a full valuation allowance against the deferred tax assets of
$227,729 (2015: $183,405) on the expected future tax benefits from the net operating loss carry forwards as the management believes
it is not likely that these assets will be realized in the future.

The general statute of limitations for an assessment or additional assessment is five years from the end of the relevant year of
assessment. If the Inland Revenue Board is of the view that a transaction is not at a arm’s length price, the statute of limitations is
extended by another two years to seven years. However, if there is fraud, willful default or negligence on the part of the taxpayer,
an assessment can be made at any time. There is no statute of limitations for the collection of unpaid tax.

A reconciliation of loss before income taxes to the effective tax rate as follows:

Years ended October 31,

2016 2015

Loss before income taxes $ (507,100) $ (762,746)
Statutory income tax rate 24% 25%
Income tax at statutory tax rate (121,704) (190,687)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 58,675 166,428
Tax effect of different tax rate 3,092 8,593
Tax effect of non-business source rental income

- under-provision in prior years 84,759 213,141
- current year 155,303 154,789

Under-provision in prior years 9,692 271,568



Net operating loss 63,721 15,666
Income tax expense $ 253,538 % 639,498

In fiscal 2014, for Malaysian Tax purposes, rental income at “Megan Avenue” and “Menara CMY” was deemed as a business source
and income tax provision was calculated as such. During fiscals 2015 and 2016, the Company revisited the facts and circumstances
and determined that rental income should be more appropriately taxed as a non-business source under Section 4(d) of the Income
Tax Act.

The following table sets forth the significant components of the aggregate deferred tax assets of the Company as of October 31, 2016
and 2015:

As of October 31,
2016 2015

Deferred tax assets:
Capital loss $ 10,055 $ 6,359
Accrued interest expenses 13,694 -
Net operating loss carry forwards
- United States of America 226,166 163,743
- Malaysia 221,223 183,405
- Hong Kong 1,065 1,065
Total deferred tax assets 472,203 354,572
Less: valuation allowance (458,509) (354,572)
Deferred tax assets $ 13694 $ -
Rental concession $ 6,558 $ 6,401
Deferred tax liabilities — non-current
Property, plant and equipment 2,757 2,691
Rental concession 177,606 179,770

$ 180,363 $ 182,461

13.  PENSION PLAN

The Company is required to make contribution on behalf of its employees under a government-mandated defined contribution
pension scheme for its eligible full-times employees in Malaysia and the PRC. The Company is required to contribute a specified
percentage of the participants’ relevant income based on their ages and wages level. The total contributions made by the Company
were $29,303 and $41,928 for the years ended October 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a) Business segment reporting

During the years ended October 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company operated two reportable business segments, as defined by ASC
Topic 280:

o Plantation business — oil palm and durian plantation in Malaysia
o Real estate business — acquisition and development of commercial and residential real estate properties in Malaysia

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies (see Note
3). The Company had no inter-segment sales for the years presented. Summarized financial information concerning the Company’s

reportable segments is shown as below:

Year ended October 31, 2016

Plantation Real Estate

Business Business Corporate Total
Revenues, net $ 108,516 $ 1564239 $ - % 1,672,755
Less: inter-company revenues - (26,028) - (26,028)
Revenues from external customers 108,516 1,538,211 - 1,646,727

Cost of revenues (35,585) (594,833) - (630,418)




Gross profit 72,931 943,378 - 1,016,309

Depreciation 13,801 500,793 14,327 528,921
Net income (loss) 2,290 (525,696) (388,116) (911,522)
Total assets 5,957,293 39,523,026 331,533 45,811,852
Expenditure for long-lived assets $ 7,764  $ 1373 % - $ 9,137
Year ended October 31, 2015

Plantation Real Estate

Business Business Corporate Total
Revenues, net $ 156,642 $ 1,791,691 $ - $ 1,948,333
Less: inter-company revenues - (28,590) - (28,590)
Revenues from external customers 156,642 1,763,101 - 1,919,743
Cost of revenues (83,728) (656,139) - (739,867)
Gross profit 72,914 1,106,962 - 1,179,876
Depreciation 19,033 550,051 21,673 590,757
Net income (loss) 33,901 (809,267) (818,068) (1,593,434)
Total assets 5,850,588 40,772,138 463,857 47,086,583
Expenditure for long-lived assets $ 16,110 $ 301,354 $ 1,181  $ 318,645

All long-lived assets are located in Malaysia.
(b) Geographic segment reporting

The business of the Company is engaged entirely in Malaysia. The Chief Executive Officer and executive directors regularly review
the Company’s business as one geographical segment.

As of October 31, 2016, the amount of net assets held by a PRC subsidiary was $0 (2015: $74,595), all of which is restricted.
15. CONCENTRATIONS OF RISK

The Company is exposed to the following concentrations of risk:

€)] Major customers

For the years ended October 31, 2016 and 2015, the customer who accounted for 10% or more of the Company’s revenues is
presented as follows:

Year ended October 31, 2016 October 31, 2016
Business Percentage Trade accounts
segment Revenues of revenues receivable
Customer A Real estate $ 1,501,818 91% $ 104,924
Year ended October 31, 2015 October 31, 2015
Business Percentage Trade accounts
segment Revenues of revenues receivable
Customer A Real estate $ 1,729,560 0% $ 102,421

(b) Major vendors

For the years ended October 31, 2016 and 2015, the vendor who accounted for 10% or more of the Company’s purchases is presented
as follows:

October 31,
Year ended October 31, 2016 2016
Percentage Trade accounts
Purchase of purchase payable

Vendor B 4,715 13% -




October 31,

Year ended October 31, 2015 2015
Percentage Trade accounts
Purchase of purchase payable
Vendor C $ 45,794 55% $ -
Vendor D 17,995 21% -

All of the vendors are located in Malaysia.
(c) Credit risk

Financial instruments that are potentially subject to credit risk consist principally of trade receivables. The Company believes the
concentration of credit risk in its trade receivables is substantially mitigated by its ongoing credit evaluation process and relatively
short collection terms. The Company does not generally require collateral from customers. The Company evaluates the need for an
allowance for doubtful accounts based upon factors surrounding the credit risk of specific customers, historical trends and other
information.

(d) Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk primarily relates to the interest income generated from excess cash invested in time
deposits, and interest expense incurred on bank borrowings. The Company has not used derivative financial instruments in its
investment portfolio in order to reduce this risk. The Company has not been exposed nor does it anticipate being exposed to material
risks due to changes in interest rates.

(e) Exchange rate risk

The reporting currency of the Company is US$. To date the majority of the revenues and costs are denominated in MYR, and a
significant portion of the assets and liabilities are denominated in MYR. As a result, the Company is exposed to foreign exchange
risk as its revenues and results of operations may be affected by fluctuations in the exchange rate between US$ and MYR. If MYR
depreciates against US$, the value of MYR revenues and assets as expressed in US$ financial statements will decline. The Company
does not hold any derivative or other financial instruments that expose to substantial market risk.

()] Economic and political risks

Substantially all of the Company’s services are conducted in Malaysia. The Company’s operations are subject to various political,
economic, and other risks and uncertainties inherent in Malaysia. Among other risks, the Company’s operations are subject to the
risks of restrictions on transfer of funds; export duties, quotas, and embargoes; domestic and international customs and tariffs;
changing taxation policies; foreign exchange restrictions; and political conditions and governmental regulations in Malaysia.

16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

@ Operating lease commitments

As of October 31, 2016, the Company occupied its own building premises and has no significant future minimum rental payments
due under various operating leases in the next twelve months.

(b)  Capital commitment

As of October 31, 2016, the Company does not have any significant capital commitments.

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In accordance with ASC Topic 855, “Subsequent Events”, which establishes general standards of accounting for and disclosure of
events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued, the Company has evaluated all events or

transactions that occurred after October 31, 2016 up through February 10, 2017 of these consolidated financial statements. During
the period, the Company did not have any material recognizable subsequent events.






ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE.

On June 9, 2015, we dismissed B F Borgers CPA PC as our independent registered public accounting firm, and engaged
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited (“CHHK”) as our independent registered public accounting firm for the 2015 Fiscal Year.
Effective September 26, 2016, we were advised that CHHK will no longer provide audit and assurance services to public companies
subject to the statutes and regulations of the United States effective as of October 1, 2016. Accordingly, we terminated the services
of CHHK effective September 30, 2016. Effective October 10, 2016, we retained Centurion ZD CPA Limited (formerly DCAW
(CPA) Limited) as our independent registered public accounting firm. DCAW (CPA) Limited changed its name to Centurion ZD
CPA Limited on October 25, 2016.

The disclosure required under this section was previously reported as such term is defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, on a Current Reports on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
October 10. 2016, September 30, 2016, and June 10, 2015.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, our management conducted an evaluation, under the supervision and
with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Interim Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (the Exchange Act). Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Interim Chief Financial Officer concluded
that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report in ensuring that
information required to be disclosed was recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the
SEC’s rules and forms, and to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by the Company in such reports
is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Interim Chief Financial
Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such
term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act. Under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive
Officer, and Interim Chief Financial Officer, our management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting based upon the framework in “Internal Control — Integrated Framework™ issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on that evaluation, our management concluded that our internal
control over financial reporting was effective as of October 31, 2016.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of our registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over
financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation by our registered public accounting firm pursuant to rules of
the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the Company to provide only management’s report in this annual report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2016, there were no changes in the internal control over financial reporting that materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Inherent Limitations of Disclosure Controls and Procedures and Internal Control over Financial Reporting
It should be noted that any system of controls, however well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance that the objectives of the system will be met. In addition, the design of any control system is based in part upon

certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

None.



PART 111

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

Set forth below are the present directors, director nominees and executive officers of the Company. There are no other
persons who have been nominated or chosen to become directors nor are there any other persons who have been chosen to become
executive officers. There are no arrangements or understandings between any of the directors, officers and other persons pursuant to
which such person was selected as a director or an officer. Directors are elected to serve until the next annual meeting of stockholders
and until their successors have been elected and have qualified. Officers are appointed to serve until the meeting of the board of
directors following the next annual meeting of stockholders and until their successors have been elected and qualified.

Name Age Position

Weng Kung Wong 44 Chief Executive Officer, Interim Chief Financial Officer, Interim Secretary and
Director

Maylee Gan Suat Lee 39 Director

Ham Poh Chai 36 Director

Weng Kung Wong, age 44, our Chief Executive Officer and Director since November 15, 2010, founded Mobile Wallet
Sdn. Bhd., MWSB, one of the first Malaysian m-commerce companies, in 2004 and currently serves as its Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer. Prior to founding MWSB, Mr. Wong served as an Agency Unit Manager of MAA Insurance from April,
2001 to November, 2003. From January, 2000 to April, 2001, he was the Marketing Director of Spider Holding Sdn. Bhd., an herb
products distribution company. Mr. Wong began his professional career in 1995 with Forever Living Products, a health products
multilevel marketing company, where he spent four years in positions of accelerating responsibility in the areas of business
development and marketing. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’s degree in Management Information Systems from the National Central
University of Taiwan in 1995. As our Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Wong brings to our Board of Directors knowledge of our
operations and history, business leadership, corporate strategy and entrepreneurial expertise.

Maylee Gan Suat Lee, age 39, joined our Board of Directors on April 1, 2016. She is currently the founder and senior
partner of Messrs. Maylee Gan & Tai. Prior to founding her firm in 2008, Ms. Gan practiced at one of the top 5 legal firms in
Malaysia, Lee Hishammuddin Allen & Gledhill from 2004 to 2008. Ms. Gan graduated with a Bachelor of Laws (Hons) degree from
the University of London, England in 1999. She obtained her Certificate of Legal Practice in 2000 and has a Masters of Science in
Information Technology (MSc IT) from the University of Staffordshire in 2004.

Ms. Gan was admitted and enrolled as an advocate and solicitor of the High Court of Malaya in 2005. She has vast
experience in various complex corporate matters, and she was the lead associate in charge of the largest worldwide business disposal
to-date which involves the worldwide sale of its Healthcare business division in 2006, and the largest Asset-Backed Securities
transaction carried out by a listed corporation in Malaysia in the year 2008. Ms. Gan is also a Non-executive Director of G&L
Trading Sdn. Bhd, as a successor of her late father. G&L Trading Sdn. Bhd supplies cleaning detergent to hotels and food &
beverages related businesses. Through her vast experience in legal corporate matters with numerous large corporations, with which
her legal firm is a panel of solicitor, Ms. Gan brings to the Board of Directors her legal insight, knowledge and experience in legal
corporate matters.

Poh Chai Ham, 36, joined our Board of Directors on November 1, 2013. He is a partner at Leong & Co., and specializes
in contract and banking law. Poh Chai Ham joined Leong & Co. since December 2011. Prior to that time, Poh Chai Ham was in full
time study for his law degree. Poh Chai Ham received his L.L.B. law degree (with honors) from Multimedia University, Ayer Keroh
Melaka in 2011. Upon graduation, Poh Chai Ham chambered with Leong & Co. Upon completion of his pupilage, Poh Chai Ham
was admitted as an Advocate & Solicitor of the High Court of Malaya in 2013. Thereafter he became a partner in Leong & Co. Poh
Chai Ham brings to the Board of Directors legal insight and expertise in contract and banking law.

Family Relationships
There are no family relationships between any of our directors or executive officers.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

No executive officer or director is a party in a legal proceeding adverse to us or any of our subsidiaries or has a material
interest adverse to us or any of our subsidiaries.

No executive officer or director has been involved in the last ten years in any of the following:

o Any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business or property of such person, or of which such person was a general
partner or executive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy or within two years prior to that time;



e Any conviction in a criminal proceeding or being subject to a pending criminal proceeding (excluding traffic violations and
other minor offenses);

e Being subject to any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any court of competent
jurisdiction, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting his involvement in any type
of business, securities or banking activities;

e Being found by a court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the SEC or the Commodity Futures Trading Commission
to have violated a federal or state securities or commaodities law, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended, or
vacated;

e Being the subject of or a party to any judicial or administrative order, judgment, decree or finding, not subsequently
reversed, suspended or vacated relating to an alleged violation of any federal or state securities or commodities law or
regulation, or any law or regulation respecting financial institutions or insurance companies, including but not limited to, a
temporary or permanent injunction, order of disgorgement or restitution, civil money penalty or temporary or permanent
cease-and-desist order, or removal or prohibition order, or any law or regulation prohibiting mail, fraud, wire fraud or fraud
in connection with any business entity; or

e Being the subject of or a party to any sanction or order, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any self-
regulatory organization (as defined in Section 3(a)(26) of the Exchange Act, any registered entity (as defined in Section
1(a)(29) of the Commaodity Exchange Act), or any equivalent exchange, association, entity or organization that has
disciplinary authority over its members or persons associated with a member.

Board Committees

The members of each of our Compensation, Audit, and Nominations and Corporate Governance committees are comprised
of our two independent directors Maylee Gan Suat Lee and Poh Chai Ham. Maylee Gan Suat Lee and Poh Chai Ham were appointed
to serve as the Chairman or Chairperson, as applicable, of the Compensation Committee and the Nominations and Corporate
Governance Committee, respectively. The Company current does not have an Audit Committee financial expert as defined in Item
407(d)(5) of Regulation S-K promulgated under the Securities Act but hopes to have one as its business develops. Copies of the
charters for each of the Compensation, Audit and Nominations and Corporate Governance Committees are filed as Exhibits 99.1,
99.2 and 99.3, respectively.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act requires our executive officers and directors, and persons who own more than
10% of our common stock, to file reports regarding ownership of, and transactions in, our securities with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and to provide us with copies of those filings. Based solely on our review of the copies of such forms received by us,
or written representations from certain reporting persons, we believe that during fiscal year ended October 31, 2016, and up to the
date of this proxy statement, our officers, directors and greater than 10% percent beneficial owners timely filed all reports required
by Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act.

Code of Ethics

On February 2, 2012, our Board of Directors adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics applicable to all employees
of the Company including the principal executive officer, the principal financial officer and the principal accounting officer. The
Board also adopted a separate Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers, which contains
provisions specifically applicable to our Chief Executive Officer and senior financial officers including the Chief Financial Officer.
A copy of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers
are filed as Exhibit 14 to this Annual Report and are incorporated herein by reference. The Company will provide a copy of its Code
of Business Conduct and Ethics and Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers upon written
request addressed to the Secretary of the Company.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

Compensation Philosophy and Objectives

Our executive compensation philosophy is to create a long-term direct relationship between pay and our performance. Our
executive compensation program is designed to provide a balanced total compensation package over the executive’s career with US.
The compensation program objectives are to attract, motivate and retain the qualified executives that help ensure our future success,
to provide incentives for increasing our profits by awarding executives when corporate goals are achieved and to align the interests
of executives and long-term stockholders. The compensation package of our named executive officers consists of two main elements:

1. Dbase salary for our executives that is competitive relative to the market, and that reflects individual performance, retention
and other relevant considerations; and
2. discretionary bonus awards payable in cash and tied to the satisfaction of corporate objectives.



Process for Setting Executive Compensation

Our Compensation Committee is responsible for developing and overseeing the implementation of our philosophy with
respect to the compensation of executives and for monitoring the implementation and results of the compensation philosophy to
ensure compensation remains competitive, creates proper incentives to enhance stockholder value and rewards superior performance.
The Compensation Committee annually reviews and approves for each named executive officer, and particularly with regard to the
Chief Executive Officer, all components of the executive’s compensation. The Compensation Committee may award discretionary
bonuses to each of the named executives, and reviews and approves the process and factors (including individual and corporate
performance measures and actual performance versus such measures) used by the Chief Executive Officer to recommend such
awards. Additionally, the Compensation Committee reviews and approves the base salary, equity-incentive awards (if any) and any
other special or supplemental benefits of the named executive officers.

The Chief Executive Officer periodically provides the Compensation Committee with an evaluation of each named
executive officer’s performance, based on the individual performance goals and objectives developed by the Chief Executive Officer
at the beginning of the year, as well as other factors. The Compensation Committee provides an evaluation for the Chief Executive
Officer. These evaluations serve as the bases for bonus recommendations and changes in the compensation arrangements of our
named executives.

Our Compensation Peer Group

We currently engage in informal market analysis in evaluating our executive compensation arrangements. As the Company
and its businesses mature, we may retain compensation consultants that will assist us in developing a formal benchmark and selecting
a compensation peer group of companies similar to us in size or business for the purpose of comparing executive compensation
levels.

Program Components
Our executive compensation program consists of the following elements:
Base Salary

Our base salary structure is designed to encourage internal growth, attract and retain new talent, and reward strong
leadership that will sustain our growth and profitability. The base salary for each named executive officer reflects our past and current
operating profits, the named executive officer’s individual contribution to our success throughout his career, internal pay equity and
informal market data regarding comparable positions within similarly situated companies. In determining and setting base salary,
the Compensation Committee considers all of these factors, though it does not assign specific weights to any factor. The
Compensation Committee generally reviews the base salary for each named executive officer on an annual basis. For each of our
named executive officers, we review base salary data internally obtained by the Company for comparable executive positions in
similarly situated companies to ensure that the base salary rate for each executive is competitive relative to the market.

Discretionary Bonus

The objectives of our bonus awards are to encourage and reward our employees, including the named executive officers,
who contribute to and participate in our success by their ability, industry, leadership, loyalty or exceptional service and to recruit
additional executives who will contribute to that success.

Each of our named executive officers is eligible for consideration for a discretionary cash bonus. The Chief Executive
Officer makes recommendations regarding bonus awards for the named executive officers and the Compensation Committee
provides the bonus recommendation for the Chief Executive Officer. However, the Compensation Committee has sole and final
authority and discretion in designating to whom awards are made, the size of the award, if any, and its terms and conditions. The
bonus recommendation for each of the named executive officers depends on a number of factors, including (i) the performance of
the Company for the year, (ii) the satisfaction of certain individual and corporate performance measures, and (iii) other factors which
the Compensation Committee may deem relevant. The Company did not award any cash bonuses during fiscal year 2015.

Stock Holdings

The Compensation Committee recognizes the importance of having a portion of the named executive officers’
compensation be paid in the form of equity, to help align the executives’ interests with the interests of the Company’s stockholders.
At this point, however, the Compensation Committee has chosen to emphasize the cash-based portion of our compensation program
over a stock program because it believes the discretionary nature of the cash-based compensation gives it the needed flexibility to



factor in and reward the attainment of longer-term goals for the Company and the executives, as the Compensation Committee deems
appropriate.

Accordingly, we encourage, but do not insist on, executive ownership of our common stock. Methods of supporting
ownership include turning to executives to support the financing needs of the Company. We have historically allowed our named
executives to participate in private placements of the Company’s securities on the same terms and conditions as other investors.
During fiscal year 2012, our Chief Executive Officer invested approximately US$20,890,272 into the Company resulting in a
beneficial ownership of 54,811,085 shares of common stock, or approximately 10.69% of our issued and outstanding common stock.
We believe that this practice achieves the dual goals of meeting the Company’s financing needs and aligning our executives’ interests
with the interests of our stockholders.

We have not timed nor do we plan to time our release of material non-public information for the purpose of affecting the
value of executive compensation.

Summary Compensation Table

The following summary compensation table sets forth the aggregate compensation we paid or accrued during the fiscal
years ended October 31, 2016 and 2015 to (i) our Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer), (ii) our Chief Financial
Officer (principal financial officer), (iii) our three most highly compensated executive officers other than the principal executive
officer and the principal financial officer who were serving as executive officers on October 31, 2016, whose total compensation
was in excess of $100,000, and (iii) up to two additional individuals who would have been within the two-other-most-highly
compensated but were not serving as executive officers on October 31, 2016.

Nonqualified

Non-Equity Deferred
Name and Stock Option Incentive Plan  Compensation All Other
Principal Position Year Salary (1) Bonus Awards Awards Compensation Earnings Compensation Total(1)
Weng Kung Wong 2016 $ 84845 $ 0 $ 0 s 0 3 0 3 0 0 $ 84845
Chief Executive
Officer and
President 2015 $ 90,758 $ 0 $ 0 s 0 3 0 3 0 0 $ 90,758
Liong Tat Teh 2016 $ 32809 $ 0 s 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 32,809
Chief Financial
Officer (2) 2015 $ 36883 $ 0 s 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 36883

1) All cash compensation was paid in Malaysian Ringgit, our functional currency. The Malaysian Ringgit was converted into United States Dollars
using the exchange rate prevailing at the dates of payment at an average annualized rate of 4.1217 and 3.7524 for fiscal years ended October 31,
2016 and 2015, respectively.

) Liong Tat Teh resigned from his position as Chief Financial Officer and Secretary effective November 14, 2016. Concurrently therewith, Weng
Kung Wong, our Chief Executive Officer, was appointed to fill the vacancy created by Mr. Teh’s resignation.

Narrative disclosure to Summary Compensation Table
Each of our executive officers are parties to an employment agreement with UHT, our subsidiary, dated July 19, 2011, or

the Employment Agreements. Pursuant to the terms of the Employment Agreements, the executive officers will receive the annual
base salaries set forth below, retroactive July 1, 2011:

Name Annual Salary

Weng Kung Wong MYR 293,260 or US$71,151
Liong Tat Teh (1) MYR 113,100 or US$27,440
Sek Wong Fong (1) MYR 46,200 or US$12,312

Effective January 2016. Weng Kung Wong, our Chief Executive Officer accepted a salary reduction of MYR4,000 per
month, while Liong Tat Teh, our former Chief Financial Officer, accepted a salary reduction of MYR 1,000 per month.

(1) Sek Fek Wong resigned from her position as the Secretary effective March 7, 2016. Liong Tat Teh resigned from his position as
Chief Financial Officer and Secretary effective November 14, 2016.

Each executive officer may terminate his or her respective employment agreement by giving two months prior written
notice or, in lieu of such notice, electing to immediately terminate and receive a sum equal to two month salary. UHT may terminate
each Employment Agreement by giving 24 hours prior written notice in the event of any gross misconduct, criminal activities
committed by the employee, or serious default or breach by the employee of any terms of his or her respective employment agreement
or the rules and regulations of UHT.



Each executive officer also executed a noncompetition and nondisclosure agreement containing non-solicitation obligations
that survive the termination of the agreement for a period of two years, confidentiality obligations and other obligations relating to
employee inventions by the executive.

The foregoing descriptions of the Employment Agreements are qualified in their entirety by reference to such agreements
which are filed as Exhibits 10.9, 10.10 and 10.11 to this Annual Report, respectively, and are incorporated herein by reference.

Our executive officers are entitled to reimbursement for reasonable travel and other out-of-pocket expenses incurred in
connection with their services on our behalf.

Equity Awards

There are no options, warrants or convertible securities outstanding. At no time during the last fiscal year with respect to
any of any of our executive officers was there:

e any outstanding option or other equity-based award repriced or otherwise materially modified (such as by extension of
exercise periods, the change of vesting or forfeiture conditions, the change or elimination of applicable performance
criteria, or the change of the bases upon which returns are determined);

e any waiver or modification of any specified performance target, goal or condition to payout with respect to any amount
included in non-stock incentive plan compensation or payouts;

e any option or equity grant;

e any non-equity incentive plan award made to a named executive officer;

e any nonqualified deferred compensation plans including nonqualified defined contribution plans; or

e any payment for any item to be included under All Other Compensation in the Summary Compensation Table.

Director Compensation Table

The following director compensation table sets forth the aggregate compensation we paid or accrued during the fiscal year
ended October 31, 2016:

Change in
pension value
Non-equity and
Fees earned incentive nonqualified
or paid in Stock Option plan deferred All other
cash* awards  awards compensation compensation compensation Total
Name $ $ $ $ earnings $) $
() (b) (©) (d) () ) (9) (h)
Maylee Gan Suat Lee ** $ 5,095* - — — — - $ 5,095
Amiruddin Bin Che Embi
wox $ 3,636* - — — — - $ 3,636
James E. Scheifley***  §  30,000* - — — — - $ 30,000
Ham Poh Chai $ 8,734* - — — — - $ 8,734

*  All fees were paid in Malaysian Ringgit, our functional currency. The Malaysian Ringgit was converted into United States
Dollars using the exchange rate prevailing at the dates of payment at an average annualized rate of 4.1217 for fiscal year ended
October 31, 2016.

**  Amiruddin Bin Che Embi resigned from his position as a director effective March 30, 2016. Maylee Gan Suat Lee was appointed
to serve as a director effective April 1, 2016.

*** James E. Scheifley resigned from his position as a director effective November 14, 2016.
Narrative disclosure to Director Compensation Table
During our fiscal year ended October 31, 2016, we did not provide compensation to any of our employee directors for

serving as our director. We currently have no formal plan for compensating our employee directors for their services in their capacity
as directors, although we may elect to issue stock options to such persons from time to time.



Non-Employee Direct or Fees

Our Compensation Committee and Board determines the form and amount of compensation for our non-employee directors
based on informal surveys of similar companies and the amount necessary to attract and retain such directors. Directors who are
residents of Malaysia receive a monthly retainer in the amount of RM3,000. Mr. Scheifley, our former director who is a U.S. resident,
received a monthly retainer in the amount of $2,500. All directors are entitled to reimbursement for reasonable travel and other out-
of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with attendance at meetings of our Board of Directors. Our Compensation Committee
may award special remuneration to any director undertaking any special services on our behalf other than services ordinarily required
of a director.

Compensation Risk Management

The Compensation Committee collaborated with our Board of directors and human resources staff to conduct an assessment
of potential risks that may arise from our compensation programs. Based on this assessment, the Compensation Committee concluded
that our policies and practices do not encourage excessive and unnecessary risk taking that would be reasonably likely to have
material adverse effect on the Company. The assessment included our cash incentive programs, which awards non-executives with
cash bonuses for punctuality. Our compensation programs are substantially identical among business units, corporate functions and
global locations (with modifications to comply with local regulations as appropriate). The risk-mitigating factors considered in this
assessment included:

o the alignment of pay philosophy, peer group companies and compensation amounts relative to local competitive practices
to support our business objectives; and

o effective balance of cash, short- and long-term performance periods, caps on performance-based award schedules and
financial metrics with individual factors and Compensation Committee and management discretion.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

Maylee Gan Suat Lee and Poh Chai Ham served on our Compensation Committee during fiscal year ended October 31,
2016. During their tenure on our Board of Directors, Dato’ Amiruddin Bin Che Embi and James E. Scheifley served on our
Compensation Committee. Dato’ Amiruddin Bin Che Embi and Mr. Scheifley departed our Board effective March 30, 2016, and
November 14, 2016, respectively.

Compensation Committee Report

Our Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis in this report with
management. Based on its review and discussion with management, the Board of Directors recommended that the Compensation
Discussion and Analysis be included in this Annual Report. The material in this report is not deemed filed with the SEC and is not
incorporated by reference in any of our filings under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended, whether made on, before, or after the date of this Annual Report and irrespective of any general incorporation language
in such filing.

Submitted by members of the Compensation Committee:
Maylee Gan Suat Lee
Poh Chai Ham



ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The following table sets forth, as of January 31, 2017 certain information with regard to the record and beneficial ownership
of the Company’s common stock by (i) each person known to the Company to be the record or beneficial owner of more than 5% of
the Company’s common stock, (ii) each director of the Company, (iii) each of the named executive officers, and (iv) all executive
officers and directors of the Company as a group:

Percentage of

Amount Outstanding
(number Shares of
Name of Beneficial Owner of shares) Common Stock
Weng Kung Wong (1) 54,811,085 10.69%
Maylee Gan Suat Lee (1) 0 %
Poh Chai Ham (1) 0
All executive officers and directors as a group (three persons) 54,811,085 10.69%
* Less than 1%.
(1) Except as otherwise indicated, the address of each beneficial owner is c/o Prime Global Capital Group Incorporated, E-5-

2, Megan Avenue 1, Block E, Jalan Tun Razak, 50400 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

2 Applicable percentage ownership is based on 512,682,393 shares of common stock outstanding as of January 31, 2017,
together with securities exercisable or convertible into shares of common stock within 60 days of January 31, 2017.
Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and generally
includes voting or investment power with respect to securities. Shares of common stock that a person has the right to
acquire beneficial ownership of upon the exercise or conversion of options, convertible stock, warrants or other securities
that are currently exercisable or convertible or that will become exercisable or convertible within 60 days of January 31,
2017 are deemed to be beneficially owned by the person holding such securities for the purpose of computing the number
of shares beneficially owned and percentage of ownership of such person, but are not treated as outstanding for the purpose
of computing the percentage ownership of any other person.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

Escrow Arrangement with Peijin Wu Hoppe

We are party to an escrow agreement dated July 7, 2014, with Peijin Wu Hoppe, our former director, pursuant to which we
agreed to deposit One Hundred Thousand Dollars on an annual basis in an escrow account up to an aggregate of Five Hundred
Thousand Dollars. The funds will be used to finance our indemnification obligations, if any, to Ms. Hoppe under our director retainer
agreement with Ms. Hoppe. Unless earlier terminated in accordance with its terms, the escrow agreement expires upon the seventh
anniversary of the termination of Ms. Hoppe’s director retainer agreement, or July 29, 2022. Our legal counsel, Chen-Drake Law
Group, PC serves as the escrow agent at an annual fee of $3,000.

As of the date of this report, we have deposited Two Hundred Thousand Dollars into the escrow account and expect to
reach the full Five Hundred Thousand Dollar balance by May 2018. After the escrow balance reaches Five Hundred Thousand
Dollars, we will be obligated to make additional deposits to ensure that the escrow balance is maintained at or above Five Hundred
Thousand Dollars during the term of the escrow agreement.

The foregoing description of the escrow agreement is qualified in its entirety by reference to such agreement, which is filed
as Exhibit 10.11, to this Annual Report and is incorporated herein by reference.

Transactions With Weng Kung Wong, Wooi Khang Pua and Kok Wai Chai

As of October 31, 2016, we obtained from Wooi Khang Pua, UHT’s director, several unsecured, interest-free temporary
advances made to the Company with the aggregate principal amount of $180,149. The advances are repayable on demand.

As of October 31, 2016, we obtained from Weng Kung Wong, our Chief Executive Officer and director, several unsecured,
interest-free advances which, together with prior advances, have an aggregate principal amount of approximately $1,279,196. The
advances are not expected to be repayable within the next twelve months. We repaid approximately $924,780 during fiscal year
ended October 31, 2016.

We are parties to a loan from the Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad consisting of a revolving line of credit, or the RC, in
the amount of RM15,000,000 and a term loan, or the TL, in the amount of RM40,000,000, for an aggregate of RM55,000,000 in



December 2014. This loan is personally guaranteed by Weng Kung Wong, our Chief Executive Officer and Director, and also
guaranteed by UHT, our wholly owned subsidiary. The foregoing description of the loan with the Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad
is qualified in its entirety by reference to such agreement, which is filed as Exhibit 10.6, to this Annual Report and is incorporated
herein by reference.

Weng Kung Wong and Kok Wai Chai also have jointly and severally guaranteed the repayment of the loans made by RHB
Bank Berhad to PGCG Assets in the principal amount of RM9,840,000 in connection with the acquisition of its twelve story
commercial building in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. The foregoing description of the loans with RHB Bank Berhad is qualified in its
entirety by reference to such agreements, which are filed as Exhibits 10.7 through and including 10.9 to this Annual Report and are
incorporated herein by reference

We have not adopted policies or procedures for approval of related person transactions but review them on a case-by-case
basis. We believe that all related party transactions were on terms at least as favorable as we would have secured in arm’s-length
transactions with third parties. Except as set forth above, we have not entered into any material transactions with any director,
executive officer, and promoter, beneficial owner of five percent or more of our common stock, or family members of such persons.

Director Independence

We have adopted standards for director independence that correspond to NYSE listing standards and SEC rules. An
“independent director” means a person who is not an officer or employee of the Company or its subsidiaries, or any other individual
having a relationship that, in the opinion of the Board, would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the
responsibilities of a director. To be considered independent, the Board must affirmatively determine that neither the director, nor
any member of his or her immediate family, has had any direct or indirect material relationship with the Company within the previous
three years. In addition, to be considered “independent” under SEC rules, each member of the Audit Committee may not accept,
directly or indirectly, any consulting, advisory, or other compensatory fee from us, other than compensation for his or her services
as a director.

The Board considered relationships, transactions and/or arrangements with each of the directors and concluded that none
of the non-employee directors, or any of his or her immediate family members, has any relationship with us that would impair his or
her independence. The Board has determined that each member of the Board, other than Mr. Wong, is an independent director under
applicable NYSE listing standards and SEC rules. Mr. Wong does not meet the independence standards because he is an employee
and executive officer of the Company.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.

Our Audit Committee has adopted certain pre-approval policies and procedures which are more fully described in Exhibit
99.4.

The following table sets forth fees billed by our auditors during the last two fiscal years for services rendered for the audit
of our annual consolidated financial statements and the review of our quarterly financial statements, services by our auditors that are
reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of our consolidated financial statements and that are not reported as
audit fees, services rendered in connection with tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning, and all other fees for services rendered.

Years ended October 31,
2016 2015

Audit fees (1) $ 79,000 73,000
Audit related fees (2) 28,000 28,000
Tax fees - -

All other fees - -

(1) Audit Fees represent fees for professional services billed and to be billed in connection with the audit of our consolidated annual
financial statements, the audit of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of October 31, 2015 and review
of the quarterly financial statements and internal controls over financial reporting, and audit services in connection with
statutory or regulatory filings, consents or other SEC matters.

B F Borgers CPA has billed us $6,000 in the aggregate, for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2015 for audit services rendered.
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited has billed us $21,000 and $67,000 in the aggregate for the fiscal year ended October 31,



2016 and 2015, respectively, for audit services rendered. Centurion ZD CPA Limited has billed us $58,000 in the aggregate for
the fiscal year ended October 31, 2016 for audit services rendered.

(2) Audit-Related Fees consist of fees billed for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the
audit or review of our consolidated financial statements and are not reported under “Audit Fees.” In fiscal 2016 and 2015, this
category consisted of fees billed by HKCMCPA Company Limited in connection with compiling the Company’s financial
statements for fiscal 2016 and 2015.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

The following documents are filed as part of this report:
Q) Financial Statements

Financial Statements are included in Part I1, Item 8 of this report.
(2) Financial Statement Schedules

No financial statement schedules are included because such schedules are not applicable, are not required, or because
required information is included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits

Exhibit No.  Name of Exhibit

2.1 Articles of Exchange (1)

2.2 Share Exchange Agreement, dated December 6, 2010, by and between Home Touch Holding Company, on the one
hand, and Union Hub Technology Sdn. Bhn., Wooi Khang Pua and Kok Wai Chai, on the other hand (2)

2.3 Share Exchange Agreement, dated January 26, 2009, by and between Home Touch Holding Company and Home
Touch Limited (3)

3.1 Amended and Restated Avrticles of Incorporation (1)

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws (4)

4.1 Form of common stock certificate (1)

10.1 Common Stock Purchase Agreement, dated December 6, 2010, by and among Home Touch Holding Company,
Home Touch Limited, Up Pride Investments Limited and Magicsuccess Investments Limited (2)

10.2 Termination Letter, by and between Virtual Setup Sdn. Bhd. and B J Bentong Trading dated September 27, 2016
(5)

10.3 Tenancy Agreement, dated August 18, 2014, by and between PGCG Assets Holdings Sdn. Bhd. and Le Apple
Boutique Hotel (KLCC) Sdn. Bhd. (6)

10.4 Memorandum of Understanding between PGCG Assets Holdings Sdn Bhd and Yong Tai Berhad dated June 24,
2016 (7)

10.5 Letter of Offer issued by the Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad to PGCG Assets Holdings Sdn. Bhd. effective
October 31, 2014 (8)

10.6 Offer Letter dated March 26, 2013, issued by RHB Bank Berhad with respect to four banking facilities in the
aggregate principal amount of up to RM 3,452,000 (9)

10.7 Offer Letter dated March 26, 2013, issued by RHB Bank Berhad with respect to two banking facilities in the
aggregate principal amount of up to RM 1,680,000 (9)

10.8 Offer Letter dated March 26, 2013, issued by RHB Bank Berhad with respect to six banking facilities in the
aggregate principal amount of up to RM 4,708,000 (9)

10.9 Letter of Appointment dated July 19, 2011, by and between Union Hub Technology Sdn. Bhd. and Weng Kung
Wong (10)

10.10 Letter of Appointment dated July 19, 2011, by and between Union Hub Technology Sdn. Bhd. and Liong Tat Teh
(10)

10.11 Letter of Appointment dated July 19, 2011, by and between Union Hub Technology Sdn. Bhd. and Sek Fong
Wong (10)

10.11 Escrow Agreement dated July 7, 2014, by and among Chen-Drake Law Group, P.C. Prime Global Capital Group
Incorporated, and Peijin Wu Hoppe (11)

14 Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (12)

21 List of Subsidiaries*

24 Power of Attorney*

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer required under Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) under the Exchange Act.*



321 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

99.1 Charter to Compensation Committee (13)

99.2 Charter to Audit Committee (13)

99.3 Charter to Corporate Governance Committee (13)

99.4 Audit Committee Pre-Approval Procedures (11)

101.INS XBRL Instance Document*

101.SCH XBRL Schema Document*

101.CAL XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document*
101.DEF XBRL Definition Linkbase Document*
101.LAB XBRL Label Linkbase Document*
101.PRE XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document*

*
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(12)

(13)

Filed herewith.

Incorporated by reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange on February 22,
2011.

Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange on December
7, 2010.

Incorporated by reference from Amendment No. 2 to our registration statement filed on Form S-1 with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on September 2, 2009.

Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2 to Preliminary Information Statement on Schedule 14C filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on December 23, 2010.

Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October
4, 2016.

Incorporated by reference From Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange on
August 18, 2014.

Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July
1, 2016.

Incorporated by referenced from our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
November 3, 2014.

Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April
1, 2013.

Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July
19, 2011.

Incorporated by reference from our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
January 29, 2016.

Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 2, 2012.

Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Commission on April 27, 2012.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

PRIME GLOBAL CAPITAL GROUP INCORPORATED
(Registrant)

By: /s/Weng Kung Wong
Weng Kung Wong
Chief Executive Officer




Dated:February 10, 2017

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the Registrant, and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature Title Date

/s Weng Kung Wong Chief Executive Officer, Interim Chief Financial Officer,

Weng Kung Wong Interim Secretary and Director February 10, 2017
(Principal Executive Officer ad Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ Maylee Gan Suat Lee* Director February 10, 2017

Maylee Gan Suat Lee

[s/ Ham Poh Chai* Director February 10, 2017

Ham Poh Chai

Representing all of the members of the Board of Directors.

*By /s/ Wen Kung Wong
Weng Kung Wong
Attorney-in-Fact**

** By authority of the power of attorney filed herewith
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Name of entities

Place of
incorporation

SUBSIDIARIES

Date of
incorporation

Issued capital

Exhibit 21

Nature of business

Union Hub Technology Sdn.
Bhd. (“UHT”)

Power Green Investments
Limited (“PGIL”)

PGCG Properties Investment

Limited (“PPIL”)
Virtual Setup Sdn. Bhd.
(“VS SB”)

PGCG Assets Holdings Sdn.
Bhd. (“PGCG Assets”)

PGCG Development Sdn. Bhd.

(“PGCG Development™)

PGCG Plantations Sdn. Bhd.
(“PGCG Plantation”)

Max Trend International Limited

(“Max Trend”)

Shenzhen Max Trend Green

Energy Company Limited (Max

Trend WOFE) (“SMTG”)

Dunford Corporation Sdn. Bhd

Impiana Maksima Sdn. Bhd.

PGCG Constructions Sdn. Bhd.

Fiesta Senada Sdn. Bhd.

Havana Avenue Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

British Virgin
Islands

British Virgin
Islands

Malaysia

Malaysia

Malaysia

Malaysia

Hong Kong

The People’s

Republic of China

(66PRC’7)’
Shenzhen

Malaysia

Malaysia

Malaysia

Malaysia

Malaysia

February 22,
2008

January 13,
2011

September 1,
2011

July 19, 2010

March 21, 2012

March 21, 2012

October 4, 2011

August 19, 2010

July 7, 2011

October 4, 1990

March 15, 2013

April 16, 2013

November 28,
2012

April 4, 2014

100,000,000 issued
shares of ordinary
shares of MYR 1 each

1 issued share of US$1
each

1 issued share of US$1
each

4,000,000 issued
shares of ordinary
shares of MYR 1 each

50,000,000 issued
shares of ordinary
shares of MYR 1 each

250,000 issued shares
of ordinary shares of
MYR 1 each

2 issued shares of
ordinary shares of
MYR 1 each

2 issued shares of

Provision of IT consulting
and programming services
and corporate service to
group companies

Inactive operation

Inactive operation

Operation of oil palm and
durian plantation

Investment in land and

buildings

Inactive operation

Holding company of VSSB

Holding company of Max

ordinary shares of HK$ Trend WFOE

1 each

RMB 1,000,000

242,000 issued shares
of ordinary shares of
MYR 1 each

2 issued shares of
ordinary shares of
MYR 1 each

2 issued shares of
ordinary shares of
MYR 1 each

2 issued shares of
ordinary shares of
MYR 1 each

2 issued shares of
ordinary shares of
MYR 1 each

De-registered in August
2015

Property holding land

Property development

Construction of properties

Inactive operation

Inactive operation



Exhibit 24
POWER OF ATTORNEY

The undersigned directors and officers of Prime Global Capital Group Incorporated, a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), hereby
constitute and appoint Weng Kung Wong, and each of them, with full power to act without the other, as the undersigned’s true and
lawful attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for the undersigned and in the undersigned’s name, place
and stead in the undersigned’s capacity as an officer and/or director of the Company, to execute in the name and on behalf of the
undersigned an annual report of the Company on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2016 (the “Report”), under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and to file such Report, with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection
therewith and any and all amendments thereto, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact,
and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or desirable to be done and to
take any other action of any type whatsoever in connection with the foregoing which, in the opinion of such attorney-in-fact, may
be of benefit to, in the best interest of, or legally required of, the undersigned, it being understood that the documents executed by
such attorney-in-fact on behalf of the undersigned pursuant to this Power of Attorney shall be in such form and shall contain such
terms and conditions as such attorney-in-fact may approve in such attorney-in-fact’s discretion.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands this 10th day of February, 2017.

/sl Weng Kung Wong
Weng Kung Wong

Director
/s/Maylee Gan Suat Lee /s/ Ham Poh Chai
Maylee Gan Suat Lee Ham Poh Chai

Director Director



Exhibit 31.1
PRIME GLOBAL CAPITAL GROUP INCORPORATED

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO
RULE 13A-14(A) OR RULE 15D-14(A),
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
RULE 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Weng Kung Wong, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Form 10-K of Prime Global Capital Group Incorporated;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented
in this report;

4. 1 am responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based
on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/_'Weng Kung Wong

Weng Kung Wong

Chief Executive Officer, Interim Chief Financial Officer
and Secretary

Dated: February 10, 2017



EXHIBIT 32.1

PRIME GLOBAL CAPITAL GROUP INCORPORATED
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Prime Global Capital Group Incorporated (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the
year ended October 31, 2016, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), 1, Weng
Kung Wong, Chief Executive Officer, Interim Chief Financial Officer and Interim Secretary of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. 81350, as adopted pursuant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

Is/ Weng Kung Wong
Weng Kung Wong

Date: February 10, 2017 Chief Executive Officer, Interim Chief Financial Officer and
Interim Secretary




